
 

NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
JULY 26, 2010 

CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�




 

 

 
 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda. Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members. I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
  

 





 

 

      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 26, 2010 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION: Padma Kuppa, Outreach Chairperson, from Bharatiya Temple 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 Presentations: 1 

(a) Legislative update received from State Representative Marty Knollenberg – 
41st District ............................................................................................................ 1 

(b) Presentation from Members of the Bharatiya Temple to Promote their 
Temple’s Festival – The Anand Bazaar, a Fun Filled Family Event to be held 
on Sunday, August 1 from 11 AM - 7 PM ............................................................. 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

E-1 No Public Hearings 1 



 

 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 1 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 2 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

H-1 No Postponed Items 2 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 2 

I-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 2 

(a) Mayoral Appointments: None Scheduled ............................................................. 2 
(b) City Council Appointments: None Scheduled ....................................................... 2 

I-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: 2 

(c) Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled ............................................................... 2 
(d) City Council Nominations: None Scheduled ......................................................... 2 

I-3 Request for Closed Session 2 

I-4 Preliminary Site Plan Review – File Number SP 962 – InPro Insurance Group – 
Section 24 3 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 3 

J-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 3 

J-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 3 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 3 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 4 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 4 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Audio & Video 
Upgrades .............................................................................................................. 4 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to 
Expend Funds for Council Member Travel Expenses – Michigan Municipal 
League’s 112th Annual Convention – Dearborn, MI .............................................. 4 



 

 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder Contract 10-1 
Section 35 – Water Main Replacement ................................................................ 4 

J-5 Private Agreement for Our Credit Union 5 

J-6 Chapter 106 – Traffic; “Driving While Distracted” Ordinance – “Drag Races 
Prohibited; “Drag Racing” Defined’ Violation Punishable as Misdemeanor” 5 

J-7 Bid Waiver – Police Gun Range Maintenance 5 

J-8 Private Agreement for Kilmer PUD 10 6 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 6 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 6 

J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
some future point in time): None Submitted 6 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 6 

L-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 6 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 6 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 6 

N. REPORTS 6 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 6 

a) Troy Historic Commission – Final – March 23, 2010 ............................................ 6 
b) Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting/Draft – June 22, 2010 ................... 6 
c) Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting/Final – June 22, 2010 ................... 6 

N-2 Department Reports: 6 

a) Final Reporting – BidNet on-Line Auction Services – June 2010 ......................... 6 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation: 6 

a) Letter of Appreciation from Jerome Katz to John Szerlag Commending Pam 
Valentik for her Hard Work and Assistance at the MEGA Meeting ...................... 6 



 

 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 7 

a) Oakland County Board of Commissioners – Miscellaneous Resolution 
#10143 – Information Technology – Policy on Electronic Equipment Hard 
Drives to Protect Against Identity Theft ................................................................ 7 

N-5  Proof of TIPS/TAMS Server Training 7 

N-6  July 12, 2010 City Council Meeting – Public Comment – Maryann Bernardi 7 

N-7  Motion Filed by Grand Sakwa Regarding Transit Center Property 7 

N-8  July 12, 2010 City Council Meeting – Public Comment – James Savage 7 

N-9  Act 164 Library – 11/02/10 General Election Ballot Question 7 

O. STUDY ITEMS 7 

O-1  Restructuring Committee Quarterly Report 7 

P. CLOSED SESSION: 7 

P-1 Closed Session – Andrew Zurowski v. City of Troy 7 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 7 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 7 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 7 

Monday, August 9, 2010 Regular City Council ........................................................ 7 
Monday, August 16, 2010 Regular City Council ...................................................... 7 
Monday, August 23, 2010 Regular City Council ...................................................... 7 
Monday, September 13, 2010 Regular City Council ................................................ 7 
Monday, September 20, 2010 Regular City Council ................................................ 7 
Monday, September 27, 2010 Regular City Council ................................................ 7 
Monday, October 4, 2010 Regular City Council ...................................................... 7 
Monday, October 11, 2010 Regular City Council .................................................... 7 
Monday, October 18, 2010 Regular City Council .................................................... 7 
Monday, November 8, 2010 Regular City Council ................................................... 7 
Monday, November 15, 2010 Regular City Council ................................................. 8 
Monday, November 22, 2010 Regular City Council ................................................. 8 
Monday, December 6, 2010 Regular City Council ................................................... 8 



 

 

Monday, December 13, 2010 Regular City Council ................................................. 8 
Monday, December 20, 2010 Regular City Council ................................................. 8 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 26, 2010 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION: Padma Kuppa, Outreach Chairperson, from Bharatiya Temple 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 
(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 

Robin Beltramini 
Mayor Pro Tem Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

 
(b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Mayor Pro Tem Wade 
Fleming at the Regular City Council Meeting of Monday, July 26, 2010 and the Closed Session 
of Monday, July 26, 2010 due to being out of the county. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 Presentations:  
(a) Legislative update received from State Representative Marty Knollenberg – 41st District  
(b) Presentation from Members of the Bharatiya Temple to Promote their Temple’s Festival 

– The Anand Bazaar, a Fun Filled Family Event to be held on Sunday, August 1 from 11 
AM - 7 PM 

 
D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings 
 
F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  

In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – 
Members of the Public and Visitors 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 26, 2010 
 

- 2 - 

Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 

the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

(5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or any other item 
as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment portion of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council 
members. 

• City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are related to 
topics where there is significant public input anticipated. 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment may be 
limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on a Public 
Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
H-1 No Postponed Items 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 
 
(a) Mayoral Appointments: None Scheduled 
 
(b) City Council Appointments: None Scheduled 
 
I-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees:  
 
(c) Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
(d) City Council Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
I-3 Request for Closed Session 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 26, 2010 
 

- 3 - 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL15.268 (e) Pending Litigation Troy v William H. Price and Troy v BG’s LLC. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
I-4 Preliminary Site Plan Review – File Number SP 962 – InPro Insurance Group – 

Section 24 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as 
requested for the proposed InPro Insurance Group Office Building addition, located on the 
north side of Big Beaver, east of John R, in Section 24, within the O-1 Zoning District, 
SUBJECT to the following conditions: 
 

1. A cross access easement is granted to the property to the east in the northeast corner of 
the InPro Insurance Group property. InPro Insurance Group shall execute an agreement 
to construct same at the City’s request. 
 

2. That a parking adjustment of four (4) spaces is granted per Section 40.20.12. 
 

Yes: 
No: 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
J-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
J-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 26, 2010 
 

- 4 - 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of July 12, 2010 as submitted. 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Audio & Video 

Upgrades 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish all equipment, 
material and labor to provide and install upgrades to the Audio and Video Systems in the 
Council Chambers and cable room in the Troy City Hall to the low bidder, Advanced Lighting 
and Sound of Troy, MI, for an estimated total cost of $34,500.00 at prices contained in the bid 
tabulation opened July 8, 2010, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is hereby CONTINGENT upon the supplier’s 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements.  
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds for Council Member Travel Expenses – Michigan Municipal League’s 112th 
Annual Convention – Dearborn, MI 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council members are hereby AUTHORIZED to attend the 
Michigan Municipal League’s 112th Annual Convention on September 21-24, 2010 in Dearborn, 
Michigan in accordance with accounting procedures of the City of Troy 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder Contract 10-1 Section 35 

– Water Main Replacement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contract No. 10-1, Section 35 Water 
Main Replacement to Bricco Excavating Company, LLC, 21201 Meyers Road, Oak Park, MI 
48237 at an estimated total cost of $1,549,084.50; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 26, 2010 
 

- 5 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is authorized in an amount 
not to exceed 10% of the total project cost; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RSOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED to 
execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
J-5 Private Agreement for Our Credit Union 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and GJ Perelli 
Company, for the installation of Water Main, Sanitary Manhole, Concrete Approach and 
Sidewalk, and Storm Water Pre-Treatment Structure, and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby 
AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-6 Chapter 106 – Traffic; “Driving While Distracted” Ordinance – “Drag Races 

Prohibited; “Drag Racing” Defined’ Violation Punishable as Misdemeanor” 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Chapter 106 of the Code of the City of Troy be AMENDED to renumber 
Section 5.14d as reflected on the revised attached document, which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-7 Bid Waiver – Police Gun Range Maintenance 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
 
WHEREAS, Meggitt Training Systems, Inc. is the sole known certified contractor in the area to 
maintain the equipment in the Troy Police department’s gun range;  
 
WHEREAS, It is desirable, as well as cost effective to have the Police department train, qualify 
and practice on-duty during an officer’s normal shift without incurring overtime; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Police department has entered an agreement with Sterling Heights Police 
department for the use of the range at a per annum fee of $8,000.00, which covers the cost of 
additional maintenance;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal 
bidding procedures and hereby AUTHORIZES the City of Troy to enter into a three-year 
contract with Meggitt Training Systems, Inc. of Suwanee, GA, to maintain the gun range for the 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 26, 2010 
 

- 6 - 

Troy Police department at an estimated total cost of $14,355.00, plus repair parts needed 
outside of normal maintenance at an amount not-to-exceed $2,000.00 per year, in accordance 
with their Agreement dated July 1, 2010, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting with a contract expiration of June 30, 2013.  
 
J-8 Private Agreement for Kilmer PUD 10 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and T.H. Marsh 
Construction Co., for the installation of sanitary sewer, storm sewer, water main, paving, soil 
erosion and landscaping on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City 
Clerk are authorized to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

some future point in time): None Submitted  
 
L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 
 

L-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 

N. REPORTS  
N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Troy Historic Commission – Final – March 23, 2010 
b) Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting/Draft – June 22, 2010 
c)  Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting/Final – June 22, 2010 

N-2 Department Reports:  
a) Final Reporting – BidNet on-Line Auction Services – June 2010 
 
N-3  Letters of Appreciation: 
a) Letter of Appreciation from Jerome Katz to John Szerlag Commending Pam Valentik for 

her Hard Work and Assistance at the MEGA Meeting  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 26, 2010 
 

- 7 - 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
a) Oakland County Board of Commissioners – Miscellaneous Resolution #10143 – 

Information Technology – Policy on Electronic Equipment Hard Drives to Protect Against 
Identity Theft 

 
N-5  Proof of TIPS/TAMS Server Training 
 
N-6  July 12, 2010 City Council Meeting – Public Comment – Maryann Bernardi 
 
N-7  Motion Filed by Grand Sakwa Regarding Transit Center Property 
 
N-8  July 12, 2010 City Council Meeting – Public Comment – James Savage 
 
N-9  Act 164 Library – 11/02/10 General Election Ballot Question 

O. STUDY ITEMS 

O-1  Restructuring Committee Quarterly Report 

P. CLOSED SESSION: 

P-1 Closed Session – Troy v William H. Price and Troy v BG’s LLC 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
No Future City Council Public Hearings Scheduled 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
Monday, August 9, 2010 ........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, August 16, 2010 ......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, August 23, 2010 ......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 13, 2010 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 20, 2010 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 27, 2010 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 4, 2010 ......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 11, 2010 ....................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 18, 2010 ....................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 8, 2010 ...................................................... Regular City Council 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 26, 2010 
 

- 8 - 

Monday, November 15, 2010 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 22, 2010 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 6, 2010 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 13, 2010 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 20, 2010 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 



1 
 

 
 
DATE: July 21, 2010 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 962) – Proposed InPro 

Insurance Group Office Building addition, North side of Big Beaver Road, East of John 
R (2095 E. Big Beaver), Section 24, Currently Zoned O-1 (Office Building) – Controlled 
by Consent Judgment 

 
 
Background 
 
The applicant Rand Construction Engineering, Inc. submitted the above referenced Preliminary Site 
Plan Approval application.  They propose to eliminate the cross-access easement that was required 
by the Planning Commission as a condition of site plan approval on July 12, 1988.  This cross access 
easement terminates at the western property line in the northwest corner of the property.  Eliminating 
the cross access easement will allow the applicant to construct a brick enclosure for an oxygen tank 
next to the building.  A daycare facility and outdoor play area sits on the property to the west.  The 
oxygen tank will be enclosed by a brick wall and will be required to meet all building and fire codes.  
The property is zoned O-1 but is controlled by Consent Judgment, which gives City Council the 
authority to approve the site plan. 
 
The Planning Commission considered this item at the June 22, 2010 Special/Study meeting.  The 
Planning Commission recommended approval of the site plan, conditioned upon a cross access 
easement connection being provided to the property to the east, near the northeast corner of the 
property.  This easement would connect to a proposed cross access easement on the abutting 
property to the east, Big Beaver Place PUD, which received Concept Development Plan (CDP) 
approval on September 10, 2007.  To date, a Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) has not been 
submitted for Big Beaver Place PUD. 
 
The Planning Commission typically requires cross-access easements to provide vehicular 
connections between abutting commercial and office districts.  The proposed connection would 
potentially eliminate vehicular trips onto Big Beaver Road.  For this reason the City’s Traffic Engineer 
supports the proposed cross-access easement. 
 
The cross-access easement will require up to four (4) parking spaces along the eastern property line 
on the subject property to be eliminated.  The Planning Commission recommended that a parking 
reduction of four (4) spaces be granted, as per Section 40.20.12. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
I-04

pallottaba
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by pallottaba



2 
 

Recommendation 
 

City Management recommends approval of the Preliminary Site Plan application, with a cross-access 
easement connection to the east in the northeast corner of the property. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Report prepared by CWA. 
3. Preliminary Site Plan. 
4. Minutes from the June 22, 2010 Planning Commission meeting (final). 
5. Letter from David W. Goodman. 
6. Letter from Rick and Rita Howard. 

 
 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SP 962 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 962 Inpro Insurance Group Office Sec 24\CC Memo 07 26 10.docx 



2095 E. Big Beaver

6/16/2010

Legend

1: 1,430

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1190238 238Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

Road Centerline
Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Hydrography Poly
Hydrography Arc
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



2095 E. Big Beaver

6/16/2010

Legend

1: 1,430

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1190238 238Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

Road Centerline
Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Zoning
(PUD) Planned Unit Development
(B-1) Local Business District
(B-2) Community Business District
(B-3) General Business District
(R-C) Research Center District
(C-F) Community Facilities District
(C-J) Consent Judgment
(E-P) Environmental Protection District
(R-EC) Residential Elder Care
(P-1) Vehicular Parking District
(H-S) Highway Service District
(M-1) Light Industrial District
(O-1) Office Building District
(O-M) Office Mid-Rise District
(OSC) Office Service Commercial District
(CR-1) One Family Residential Cluster District
(R-1A) One Family Residential District
(R-1B) One Family Residential District
(R-1C) One Family Residential District
(R-1D) One Family Residential District
(R-1E) One Family Residential District
(R-1T) One Family Attached Residential District
(R-2) Two Family Residential District
(R-M) Multiple Family Residential Medium Density
(RM-1) Multiple Family Residential District (Low Rise)
(RM-2) Multiple Family Residential District (Mid Rise)
(RM-3) Multiple Family Residential District (High Rise)

Hydrography Poly
Hydrography Arc
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



 

Richard K. Carlisle, President      R. Donald Wortman, Vice President       Douglas J. Lewan, Principal      John L. Enos, Principal 
Jennifer L. Coe, Associate    Sally M. Elmiger, Associate    David J. Scurto, Associate    Brian M. Oppmann, Associate    Zachary Branigan, Associate 

 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Brent Savidant 
 
FROM: Zachary Branigan 

DATE: June 8, 2010 
 
RE: InPro Insurance Group 
 
 
We are in receipt of a request from Goodman Investments to vacate an existing cross access 
easement on the InPro Insurance Group site located at 2095 East Big Beaver Road, just east of 
John R Road, on the north side of Big Beaver. 
 
The site is controlled by a consent judgment and currently has a cross access easement at its 
northwest corner, which was intended to permit the connection of the site to the property to the 
west, which has access to both John R. Road and Big Beaver Road.  This property to the west, 
which is now occupied by the Grace Christian Learning Center, is also home to a cross access 
easement to the InPro property, but that easement is not opposite the InPro easement.  Rather, it 
is located at the south drive to Big Beaver and was originally intended to allow for a shared 
driveway. Since these easements were approved, however, the uses and build out of both sites 
has made the existing cross access easements obsolete. 
 
The InPro easement extending to the west now abuts the outdoor secure play area for children 
under the care of the Grace Christian Learning Center.  The easement at the south end of the 
Grace Christian Learning Center property is now opposite a detention basin that is located in the 
front yard of the InPro building.  Neither of these obstacles is likely to be removed or relocated, 
and no other common area exists between the two sites to replace these mismatched cross aces 
easements. 
 
Goodman Investments hopes to secure a vacation from the easement on their property to allow 
for the installation of a new walled enclosure to surround an oxygen tank. The oxygen tank is 
required by a potential tenant for the InPro facility, and no other practical location would serve to 
provide adequate and safe access to the tank.  Further, we see no practical reason to maintain the 
access easement, given that it abuts a dedicated outdoor play area.  Even if the play area were 
removed, and the use discontinued, the building Grace Christian Learning Center building itself 
would obscure a direct route west to John R. Road, as it has been added onto in recent years.   
 



InPro Easement Vacation Request  
June 8, 2010 

 2 

The original purpose for these easements was to allow for a connection of like uses for access 
management purposes.  Both sites have evolved, and have become home to established uses with 
permanent improvements that complicate and make obsolete the existing easements.  We support 
the vacation of both easements, in accordance with the written request of the applicant and 
consent of the Grace Christian Learning Center owners submitted to the Planning Department.  
Therefore, we recommend the Planning Commission recommend to the City Council that the 
consent judgment for the property be amended to permit these two easements to be vacated. 
 
Sincerely,  

 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL JUNE 22, 2010 
  
 
 
8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 962) – Proposed InPro 

Insurance Group Office Building Addition, North side of Big Beaver Road, East of 
John R (2095 E. Big Beaver), Section 24, Currently Zoned O-1 (Office Building) 
District (Consent Judgment) 
 
Mr. Branigan gave a report on the proposed Preliminary Site Plan and request to 
install a compressed oxygen tank for a new tenant.  The applicant proposes to 
vacate existing cross access easements to accommodate the oxygen tank.  Mr. 
Branigan addressed the two existing cross access easements at 2051 and 2095 
E. Big Beaver that are now obsolete as a result of established uses and build out 
of both sites.  He indicated support to vacate both easements. 
 
Mr. Branigan said the Board might want to consider asking the applicant to 
provide a cross access easement to the east, for which a Planned Unit 
Development (PUD) is approved.  He addressed two potential issues in 
requesting a cross access easement to the east: 
 No major regional benefit (no cross access to the west). 
 The site would lose four (4) parking spaces. 

 
Mr. Branigan confirmed departmental reviews indicated no special comments or 
special requirements for housing an oxygen tank on site.   
 
Discussion followed on a cross access easement to the east: 
 Intent of PUD site plan approval to provide cross access easement. 
 Standard City procedure for cross access easements. 
 Physical improvements relating to cross access easements. 
 Loss of parking spaces; no parking study completed. 
 Condition(s) to site plan approval; retain existing parking until such time that 

PUD is constructed. 
 Cut-through traffic. 
 Site maneuverability. 
 Future redevelopment. 

 
Chair Hutson expressed concern with the applicant’s parking lot turning into a 
thoroughfare for the PUD. 
 
Mr. Branigan said the Planning Department discussed that point.  He said 
basically if the site were to re-develop as another use other than office, the cross 
access easement might make more sense.  With the existing use, the cross 
access easement might be used only for short distance driving/parking and cut-
through traffic to avoid potential traffic queuing on the PUD site. 
 
David Goodman, owner of Goodman Investments and InPro Insurance Group, of 
2840 Ashbury Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Goodman addressed a cross 
access easement to the east.  He asked the Board to take into consideration the 
existing masonry wall in the parking lot and the loss of parking spaces.  He 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL JUNE 22, 2010 
  
 
 

addressed the building tenancy as relates to the number of employees and 
parking needs.  He also addressed the maneuverability of delivery trucks on site. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-06-041 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission recommends to City Council that 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed InPro Insurance 
Group Office Building Addition, located on the north side of Big Beaver, east of 
John R, in Section 24, within the O-1 zoning district, be granted, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 
1. A cross access easement is granted to the property to the east in the 

northeast corner of the InPro Insurance Group property.  InPro Insurance 
Group shall execute an agreement to construct same at the City’s request. 

2. That a parking adjustment of four (4) spaces is granted per Section 40.20.12. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Maxwell, Sanzica, Schultz, Strat, Ullmann 
No: Hutson 
Absent: Tagle, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Hutson said his no vote is based on his concern expressed during 
discussion. 
 

 







CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft July 12, 2010 
 

- 1 - 

Council Member Mary Kerwin gave the Invocation. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was 
given.  
 
A. CALL TO ORDER: 
The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, July 12, 2010, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:31 PM. 
B. ROLL CALL: 

(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Mayor Pro Tem Wade Fleming (Absent) 
Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  
C-1 Presentations:  
a) A presentation was given recognizing Sam Lamerato, Superintendent of Fleet 

Maintenance and the City of Troy’s Fleet Division for placing #1 in the 100 Best Fleets 
Award Program sponsored by Government Fleet Magazine. 

 
Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Fleming  
 
Resolution #2010-07-148 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member 
Fleming at the Regular City Council Meeting of Monday, July 12, 2010 and the Closed Session 
of Monday, July 12, 2010 due to family issues. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Howrylak   
No: Schilling, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater  
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION FAILED 
  
D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 Bostick Rochester Road Development, LLC – Rescind Plant Rehabilitation 

Exemption Certificate – 1400 Rochester Road 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
J-02

pallottaba
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by pallottaba



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft July 12, 2010 
 

- 2 - 

The Mayor opened the public hearing. The Mayor closed the public hearing after receiving no 
comment from the public. 
 
Resolution #2010-07-149 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on 
October 19, 2009, granted a Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate to Bostick Rochester 
Road Development, LLC, for property known as 1400 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, Parcel #s 88-
20-34-226-048 and 88-20-34-226-057; and 
 
WHEREAS, The State Tax Commission subsequently denied said exemption, stating that the 
developer does not qualify for this type of exemption; and 
 
WHEREAS, The tenant, Axle Tech International, LLC, has agreed to modify their lease, and 
apply for the exemption themselves, in keeping with the State Tax Commission’s interpretation 
of the exemption law; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council has found that IT IS NECESSARY TO RESCIND the Plant 
Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate (PREC) for Bostick Rochester Road Development, LLC, in 
order to allow Axle Tech International, LLC, the opportunity to apply for the exemption; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS the Plant 
Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate granted on October 19, 2009 to Bostick Rochester Road 
Development, LLC, for property located at 1400 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083; 
 
FINALLY, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO transmit a copy of 
this Resolution to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI. 
48909-7971 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling    
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
E-2 Axle Tech International, LLC – Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate – 1400 

Rochester Road 
 
The Mayor opened the public hearing. The Mayor closed the public hearing after receiving no 
comment from the public. 
 
Resolution #2010-07-150 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft July 12, 2010 
 

- 3 - 

WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on 
October 19, 2009, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 
1400 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, Parcel #s 88-20-34-226-048 and 88-20-34-226-057; and 
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by Axle Tech International, LLC, for a Plant 
Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate (PREC) for real property at 1400 Rochester, Troy, MI. 
48083, for twelve (12) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due an proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on October 19, 
2009, held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the 
possibility that the granting of a Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate (PREC) for Axle 
Tech International, LLC, at 1400 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083 may have the effect of 
substantially impeding the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of 
the taxing unit; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has found that the granting of 
a Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate (PREC) for Axle Tech International, LLC, at 1400 
Rochester, Troy, MI 48083 shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of Troy or 
the other taxing units, nor has it been found that the granting of the Plant Rehabilitation 
Exemption Certificate (PREC) will impair the financial soundness of the City of Troy, or the 
other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for a 
Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate (PREC) for Axle Tech International, LLC, Inc., at 
1400 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, Parcel #s 88-20-34-226-048 and 88-20-34-226-057, for real 
property for a term of twelve (12) years, contingent upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement 
between the City of Troy and Axle Tech International, LLC, and in accordance with Public Act 
198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the 
Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Axle Tech International, LLC, a copy of 
which shall be attached to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED to complete the 
Application and transmit same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini    
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft July 12, 2010 
 

- 4 - 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – 
Members of the Public and Visitors 
 

Terri Tucker: Discussed her concerns regarding the Hot Spot Coffee Company 
located on Big Beaver at Dequindre. 

Audrey Zembruzski: Discussed agenda item H-05 Driving While Distracted Ordinance. 
James Savage: Discussed payments made by the City of Troy to Carlisle Wortman & 

Associates. 
Peter Arvant: 
Board Member of the Troy 

Chamber of Commerce  

Extended an invitation to City Council members to attend upcoming 
Chamber of Commerce events. 

G. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
G-1 No Postponed Items 

H. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: Board of Zoning Appeals 
 
Tally of City Council Nominee Choices: 
 
Board of Zoning Appeals – Term Expires April 30, 2013; 2 Vacancies 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) 3-Year Term - 1 Planning Commission Representative & 
Alternate 
 
Tally of City Council Nominee Choices: 
Each City Council member indicated two nominees to fill the vacancies on the Board of 
Zoning Appeals from the following list of individuals placed into nomination at the June 21, 
2010 Regular City Council meeting: 
 
NOMINEES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 2 Selections for Nominations 
Kenneth Courtney Schilling, Beltramini, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater  
William Fisher Schilling, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater  
Edward Kempen Beltramini, Howrylak  

 
a) Vote on Resolution to Appoint Nominees to Board of Zoning Appeals with Term 

Scheduled to Expire on April 30, 2013 – Two Vacancies 
 
Resolution #2010-07-151 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That after having received the majority of votes, Troy City Council hereby 
APPOINTS Kenneth Courtney and William Fisher to serve on the Board of Zoning Appeals 
with terms expiring on April 30, 2013. 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft July 12, 2010 
 

- 5 - 

Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Howrylak    
No: None  
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
b) Vote on Resolution to Appoint Nominee to Board of Zoning Appeals with Term 

Scheduled to Expire on April 30, 2011 – One Vacancy 
 
Resolution #2010-07-152 
Moved by McGinnis  
Seconded by Slater  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following person to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated below:  
 
Board of Zoning Appeals  
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) 3-Year Term - 1 Planning Commission Representative & Alt. 
 
A. Allen Kneale Unexpired Term 04/30/2011 
 
Yes: McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Howrylak, Kerwin,   
No: None  
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees:  
 
a) Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
b) City Council Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
H-3 Adoption of Amended Rules of Procedure for the City Council 
 
Resolution #2010-07-153 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS Rules of Procedure for the City Council 
as amended and laid on the table. 
 
Yes: Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Kerwin, McGinnis    
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft July 12, 2010 
 

- 6 - 

H-4 Pre-Medicare Reinsurance Subsidy Availability 
 
Resolution #2010-07-154 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Slater  
 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to federal law under the Early Retirement Reinsurance Program (ERRP), 
45 CFR 149 passed as part of the Health Care Reform Act of 2010, and in other guidance 
issued by the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) 
including, but not limited to, the conditions for submission of data for obtaining reimbursement 
and the record retention requirements; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy, identified as a Plan Sponsor certifies that prior to submitting a 
reimbursement request to HHS, has executed a written agreement with its health insurance 
providers regarding disclosure of personal health information; 
 
WHEREAS, The Cornerstone Group/RDS Services has provided similar services for the 
Medicare Part D Subsidy program, and as a current client has waived a $5,000 retainer fee to 
perform these services pertaining to the ERRP application and reimbursement of funds; 
 
WHEREAS, Time is of the essence in applying for reimbursement, as funds are limited, and 
applications are to be accepted on a first come first serve basis;  
 
WHEREAS, The City’s insurance providers are the only companies with access to the data 
required to apply for reimbursement, and that the data feed from Blue Cross Blue Shield in the 
first year of reimbursement will cost $3,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Cornerstone Group/RDS Services has provided a fee structure based on 
reimbursement funds received by the City of Troy;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 
Cornerstone Group/RDS Services to assist City staff in the obtaining of data, record retention 
requirements, and application for reimbursement of ERRP funds; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The Troy City Council hereby ACKNOWLEDGES that any 
funds received under the ERRP must be used to offset both future health insurance cost 
increases and premium cost increases.  
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater    
No: None  
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft July 12, 2010 
 

- 7 - 

H-5 Driving While Distracted Ordinance 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Chapter 106 of the Code of the City of Troy be AMENDED to add Section 
3.2B, a copy of this ordinance shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Resolution for Agenda Item H-5 Driving While Distracted 
Ordinance by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2010-07-155 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS proposed resolution for Agenda Item H-5 
Driving While Distracted by STRIKING it in its entirety and SUBSTITUTING it “RESOLVED, 
That Chapter 106 of the Code of the City of Troy be AMENDED to add Sections 1.20.05 and 
5.14c, and renumbered, as reflected on the attached document, which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting.” 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling    
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
Vote on Resolution for Agenda Item H-5 Driving While Distracted as Amended by 
Substitution 
 
Resolution #2010-07-156 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Chapter 106 of the Code of the City of Troy be AMENDED to add Sections 
1.20.05 and 5.14c, and renumbered, as reflected on the attached document, which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini    
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
H-6 Request for Closed Session – No action taken 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft July 12, 2010 
 

- 8 - 

I. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
I-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2010-07-157 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Items I-7 and I-9 which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Howrylak    
No: None  
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2010-07-157-I-2 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of June 21, 2010 and the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Special Study Meeting 
of June 28, 2010 as submitted. 
 
I-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 
I-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Printing of Troy Today, 

Quarterly Newsletter:  
 
Resolution #2010-07-157-I-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a one-year contract to provide printing 
services for the Troy Today quarterly newsletter with an option to renew for two additional one-
year periods to the highest scoring respondent, Grand Blanc Printing Company, Inc. of Grand 
Blanc, MI, as a result of a best value process, which the Troy City Council determines to be in 
the public interest for an estimated annual cost of $39,008.00 for Proposals A & C, plus the 
actual cost of bulk rate postage, and additional charges if needed not to exceed 10% of the 
total contract cost or $3,900.00, at unit prices contained on the RFP tabulation opened May 24, 
2010, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with a 
contract expiration of July 1, 2011; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Troy City Council hereby REJECTS optional Proposal B. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft July 12, 2010 
 

- 9 - 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for Membership 
Dues and Membership Renewals Southeast Michigan Council of Governments 
(SEMCOG)  

 
Resolution #2010-07-157-I-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That approval is GRANTED to pay membership dues to the Southeast Michigan 
Council of Governments (SEMCOG) in the amount of $9,841.00, which covers the time period 
of July 15, 2010 to July 15, 2011. 
 
I-5 Application for New SDM License for E-Mart, LLC 
 
a) 
 

New License 

Resolution #2010-07-157-I-5a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL E Mart LLC for a 
New SDM License located at 2963 East Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County 
{MLCC Request #531318} “above all others”; and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 
Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting. 
 
b) 
 

Agreement 

Resolution #2010-07-157-I-5b 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter into agreements with applicants 
for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with E Mart LLC for a New SDM License located at 2963 East Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI 
48083, Oakland County {MLCC Request #531318} and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-6 Acceptance of a Warranty Deed for Detention Purposes for Stone Haven Park Site 

Condominium – Mondrian Properties Stone Haven Development, LLC, Section 20, 
Sidwell #88-20-20-226-080 

 
Resolution #2010-07-157-I-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Warranty Deed for detention 
purposes for a consideration amount of One Dollar ($1.00), from Mondrian Properties Stone 
Haven Development, L.L.C., owners of the property having Sidwell #88-20-20-226-080, and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft July 12, 2010 
 

- 10 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Warranty 
Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-8 Recognition as Nonprofit Organization Status from Diane Claeys of Troy Women’s 

Charitable Association 
 
Resolution #2010-07-157-I-8 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Troy Women’s 
Charitable Association asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in 
the community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license as recommended by 
City Management. 
 
I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
Council Member Beltramini disclosed that she serves as Vice President on the Troy Youth 
Assistance Board in a non-paying position. 
 
I-7 Recognition as Nonprofit Organization Status from Leonette Ciepielowski – 

Chairman of Troy Youth Assistance 
 
Resolution #2010-07-158 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Troy Youth 
Assistance asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the 
community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license as recommended by City 
Management. 
 
Yes: McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Howrylak, Kerwin  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
I-9 Liberty Investments I, LLC v. City of Troy 
 
Resolution #2010-07-159 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Liberty Investments I, LLC v. 
City of Troy (52-4th District Court Case No. 10 CO1918 GC); and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft July 12, 2010 
 

- 11 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is AUTHORIZED to pay necessary costs 
and expenses and to retain any necessary expert witnesses to adequately represent the City. 
 
Yes: Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Kerwin, McGinnis  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

J. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

some future point in time): None Submitted  
 
K. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 
 

K-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 

L. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
L-1   Council Comments Advanced: 
 
Council Member Beltramini provided Council Members with a copy of a synopsis report entitled, 
“10,000 Voices to Transform our State” that she received at the SEMCOG meeting. She noted 
the report is published by the Center for Michigan and is available at 
www.thecenterformichigan.net.  
 
Council Member Beltramini provided Council Members with an excerpt from Nation’s Cities 
Weekly entitled ”Atlantic’s Forum on Infrastructure Looks at the Future of Cities”. 
 
Council Member Beltramini suggested that the individual city departments prepare a matrix 
comparing themselves with other communities, the private sector, etc. similar to the one 
described in tonight’s presentation and make it a part of the restructuring strategy. 
 
Council Member Kerwin encouraged the public to contact the Troy Community Coalition to 
receive information in regard their teen driving safety program. 
 
Council Member Kerwin reminded Council Members that they still need to schedule meetings 
to discuss various topics such as City Council’s goals and objectives.  
 
Mayor Schilling added that City Council is due to schedule Closed Sessions for the annual 
evaluations of the City Manager and City Attorney. 
 

http://www.thecenterformichigan.net/�


CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft July 12, 2010 
 

- 12 - 

Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedures for the City Council 
 
Resolution #2010-07-160 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedures for the City 
Council Rule 6 Order of Business to take action on an item that does not appear on the 
agenda. 
 
Yes:  Schilling, Beltramini, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater  
No: None  
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Schedule Additional Regular City Council Meetings 
 
Resolution #2010-07-161 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by Schilling  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES the following dates as additional 
Regular City Council meetings at 7:30 PM in the City Council Chambers: 
 

Monday, August 16, 2010 
Monday, September 20, 2010 
Monday, October 11, 2010 
Monday, November 15, 2010 
Monday, December 13, 2010 

 
Yes: Beltramini, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED  

M. REPORTS  
M-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – March 8, 2010 
b) Election Commission/Final – March 29, 2010 
c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – May 12, 2010 
d) Library Advisory Board/Final/Amended – May 13, 2010 
e) Planning Commission/Draft – June 8, 2010 
f) Planning Commission/Final – June 8, 2010 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft July 12, 2010 
 

- 13 - 

g) Library Advisory Board/Draft – June 10, 2010 
h) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – June 14, 2010  
i) Election Commission/Draft – June 24, 2010 

Noted and Filed 

M-2 Department Reports:  
a) 2010 Second Quarter Litigation Report 
b) City Council Expense Report – Month of July 2010  

Noted and Filed 
 

M-3  Letters of Appreciation: 
a) E-mail Received from Sue and Mike Quinn Commending the Troy Police Department 
b) Note of Appreciation to the 2010 Board of Review from a Hardship Recipient 

Noted and Filed 
M-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 

Noted and Filed 
 
M-5  Michigan Public Service Commission – Notice of Hearing for the Electric 
 Customers of the Detroit Edison Company – Case No. U-16262 

Noted and Filed 
 
M-6  Troy/Birmingham Transit Center – Joint Troy Planning Commission and 

Birmingham Planning Board Meeting Schedule 
Noted and Filed 

 
M-7   Discontinue Service-Niles Community High School, School Resource Officer 

Noted and Filed 
 

M-8   Program Year 2010 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Allocation 
Noted and Filed 

 
M-9  Placement of Historical Marker on Krell Property Site – (North Side of Square 

Lake, East of Livernois at John’s Market 88-20-03-301-077) 
Noted and Filed 

 
M-10  Business Attraction Project: Witzenmann, USA 

Noted and Filed 
 
M-11  Cost of Organizational Restructuring 

Noted and Filed 
 
M-12  Report Regarding Comments Made by Mr. Benjamin Blaszak at the June 28, 2010 

City Council Special Study Meeting 
Noted and Filed 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft July 12, 2010 
 

- 14 - 

N. STUDY ITEMS 
N-1  Restructuring of the Engineering Department 
 
N-2  Project Update – Zoning Ordinance Comprehensive Rewrite (File Number: Z-234) 

O. CLOSED SESSION: 
O-1 Closed Session – None Requested 

P. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting RECESSED at 9:47 PM. 

The meeting RECONVENED at 9:57 PM. 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 11:20 PM. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



 

 
July 13, 2010 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 

 
SUBJECT:      Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Audio & Video Upgrades  
 
Background  

 Parts of the current audio and video system for our government cable channel system including the 
Council Chambers system is 15-25 years old, and some of the equipment is functionally obsolete.  
Parts are scarce and are not readily available.  The existing audio and video control systems have 
undergone numerous repairs.  The broadcast control room is outfitted with a variety of CRT preview 
and program monitors.  Several have very bad picture quality and in an effort to improve the 
production quality and the room’s workflow a new package of monitors is desired.   

 Upgrades to the Audio and Video systems in the Council Chambers and the broadcast control room 
are needed.  The changes are intended to improve the audio quality in the Chambers, improve 
reliability issues with the camera control system and repair and replace defective and deteriorating 
monitors. 

 On July 8, 2010, bid proposals were received to upgrade the audio and video systems.  The audio 
system upgrade will include a DSP based matrix mixer, multichannel amplifier to power the eight 
speakers, a larger main speaker in the Council Chambers, amplifier to power main speaker, and 
upgrades to the control system for both the main Chambers and the auxiliary meeting rooms.  
Additional upgrades will consist of new controllers, power supplies, data converters and interconnect 
cabling; and a new package of monitors to improve the production quality and the room’s workflow.  
Replace current preview and program desktop displays with 17” multi input LCD display - Install two 
triple LCD color displays and provide all wiring to camera previews from existing video switcher- 
Install one 3ru dual color LCD display and provide wiring to allow for Program and Preview display at 
current conference room video switcher, new 17” desktop display and associated wiring to allow for 
video dub rack and DVD recorder monitoring. 

  131 vendors were notified via the MITN system.  Four (4) bid responses were received, as well as 
three (3) statements of no bid. 

  
 
 
Financial Considerations 

 Funds to purchase the audio and video system upgrades are from the PEG Fees received by our 
local cable companies, account number 401.748.7978.010. 

 
 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
J-04a

pallottaba
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by pallottaba



 
 
 
July 13, 2010  
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Bid Award – Low Bidder – Audio & Video Upgrades 
 
 
 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 10-23 to furnish audio and video system upgrades to the Council Chambers and broadcast 

control room for our WTRY government channel was competitively bid as required by City Charter and 
Code.  

 The award is contingent upon vendor submission of properly executed contract documents including 
insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.   

 
Recommendation 
 City management and the Community Affairs department recommend awarding a contract to furnish, 

deliver and install audio system upgrades in the Council Chambers and control system for both the main 
Chambers and the auxiliary meeting rooms.  Additional upgrades will consist of new controllers, power 
supplies, data converters and interconnect cabling; and a new package of monitors to improve the 
production quality and the room’s workflow to the low bidder, Advanced Lighting and Sound, 2722 Elliott 
Ave, Troy, MI, for an estimated total cost of $34,500.00. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

G:/Bid Award 10-11 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 - Audio&VideoUpgrade ITB-COT10-23 07.10.doc 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-23
Opening Date -- 7/8/10 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of  1
Date Reviewed -- 7/13/10 AUDIO & VIDEO UPGRADES

jh/sl

VENDOR NAME: ** Advanced Lighting Genesys ProVideo MGR Professional

& Sound Systems, Inc. Electronic System

Check # 16739975 9189203406 023968 16784012
Check $ $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00

PROPOSAL -- FURNISH ALL EQUIPMENT, MATERIAL, AND LABOR TO PROVIDE AND INSTALL 
              AUDIO AND VIDEO UPGRADES IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS AND CABLE ROOM AT CITY HALL
FURNISH AND INSTALL:
Audio and Video Upgrades in the Council
Chambers and Cable Room in accordance
with the specifications

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 34,500.00$            36,985.00$        40,423.00$        44,840.39$       

AUTHORIZED DEALER: Y or N Yes No Yes Yes

SITE INSPECTION: Y or N Yes Yes No Yes
Date June 23, 2010 July 6, 2010 Blank July 6, 2010

COMPLETION DATE: Can Meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

But Offers: 4 weeks ARO
Minimum of

EXPERIENCE: # of Years Since 1983 16 Years 15 Years 20 Years

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

In full at
PAYMENT TERMS: Net 20 Completion Net 30 Net 30

WARRANTY:
See Sales

EXCEPTIONS: None Blank Quote Attached Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:       Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

SCHEDULE OF VALUES: Y or N Yes Yes Yes No

NO BIDS: Audio Visual Innovations (AVI-SPL)
ROSCOR Corporation
City Animation Div of NBS ** DENOTES LOW BIDDER

ATTEST:

Cindy Stewart ___________________________

Diane Fisher Susan Leirstein CPPO,CPPB

Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G:ITB-COT 10-23 Audio & Video Upgrades - Rebid

AS SPECIFIED

Witnin Seven Business Days



 

 
July 9, 2010 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Mary Redden, Administrative Assistant to the City Manager   
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution #10: Travel Authorization and  
 Approval to Expend Funds for Council Member Travel Expenses –  
 Michigan Municipal League’s 112th Annual Convention - Dearborn 
 
 
The Michigan Municipal League’s 112th Annual Convention is scheduled to take place September 21 
– 24, 2010 in Dearborn, Michigan. 
 
A resolution has been provided so that City Council may authorize and approve the expenditure of 
funds on travel expenses for any Council members interested in attending this conference. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MR/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2010\07.12.10 – Standard Purchasing Resolution #10 – MML 112th Annual Convention 

AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
J-04b

pallottaba
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by pallottaba





















UNCIL 

July 19, 2010 

TO: 	 John Szerlag, City Manager 

FROM: 	 Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer SJJ¥ 

SUBJECT: 	 Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution #1: Award to Low Bidder 
Contract 10-1 - Section 35 Water Main Replacement 

Recommendation: 

• 	 It is recommended that City Council award a contract for the Section 35 Water Main Replacement to 
Bricco Excavating Company, LLC, 21201 Meyers Road, Oak Park, MI 48237 for their low total alternate #1 
bid amount of $1 ,549,084.50. In addition, we are requesting authorization to approve additional work, if 
needed, not to exceed 10% of the original project cost. Enterprise funds are being used to fund this 
project; enterprise funds can o'nly be used for operation, maintenance and improvements to the water 
system, 

Background: 

• 	 The water mains in Section 35 are over 50 years old and have exceeded their service life. The project will 
replace and upsize these mains to meet current fire flow standards and reduce or eliminate costly main 
breaks that become common with older water mains. Work will include replacing the existing 6", 8", and 
12" water mains on 14 Mile Road, Sheffield, Kenyon, Lyons, Redwood, Burtman, Wacon, Jamaica, and 
Key West Streets with 8" and 12" water main. This work is scheduled to start in August of 2010 and be 
complete by June 2011. 

• 	 Bids were received and publicly read on July 14, 2010. Each bid package contained three (3) alternate 
bids. The purpose of the alternate bids was to generate a cost comparison based on different types of 
water main pipe. Cost information, among other criteria, was used in the selection of the best water main 
pipe alternate for this project. 

• 	 Alternate #1, Class 54 ductile iron pipe, is recommended for this project based on its superior durability 
and constructability as compared with the thinner walled Class 350 ductile iron and the fusible PVC C900 
plastic pipe. The Class 350 pipe raises some concerns about corrosion and its overall service life. The 
thinner wall also raises some concerns about the durabifity of some of the water taps made into the wall of 
the pipe. The PVC pipe, due to fusing and laying it out in a long line during directional drilling installation 
process, would cause significant driveway access problems in the densely populated project area. The 
Class 54 pipe would be installed one 20' pipe length at a time with considerably less disruption to 
residents. 

• 	 Based on the above, the low bid for alternate #1 of $1 ,549,084.50 as submitted by Bricco Excavating 
Company, LLC is recommended as the best alternative for this project. 

• 	 The Engineer's estimate at the time of bidding was $1,721,000.00. The low bid is $171,915.50 or 10% 
below the Engineer's estimate. 

http:171,915.50
http:1,721,000.00
http:549,084.50
http:549,084.50
pallottaba
Text Box
J-04c

pallottaba
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by pallottaba



Financial Considerations: 

• 	 Funds for this work are included in the 2009/10 Water Fund, account number 591.537.555.7972.095015. 
The budgeted amount includes funds for construction, inspection and contingencies. 

Legal Considerations: 

• 	 Work was competitively bid and publicly opened with four (4) bidders responding. 

• 	 Award is contingent upon submission of proper proposal and bid documents, including insurance 
certificates, bonds and all specified requirements. 

Policy Considerations: 

• 	 Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of the infrastructure and quality of life 
services. 

Prepared by: Antonio Cicchetti, PE 
G:\Contracts\Contracts - 2010\10-1 - Section 35 Water Main Replacement\Correspondence\Bid Award_r1.doc 



BID TABULATION 
CONTRACT 10-1 

Section 35 Water Main Replacement 
City of Troy 
Oakland County, Michigan 

Bricco Excavating Company, LLC 

Pamar Enterprises, Inc. 

D.V.M. Inc. 


C & P Construction Company, 


,. Corrected by Engineer 

Total Bid Amount 
(Alternate #1 - CL 54 

WM) 

$1,549,084.50 

$1,758,843.10 * 

$1,809,581.05 

$1,905,057.50 

Bids Due: July 14, 2010 
Project # 09.501.5 

Total Bid Amount 
(Alternate #2 - CL 350 

WM) 

$1,389,865.25 

$1,606,615.10 

$1,656,080.60 

$1,776,954.50 

Total Bid Amount 
(Alternate #3 - PVC 

WM) 

$1,322,607.00 

$1,464,047.10 

$1,548,933.95 

$1,620,169.50 

Prepared by: Antonio Cicchetti Page 1 7/19/2010 

http:1,620,169.50
http:1,548,933.95
http:1,464,047.10
http:1,322,607.00
http:1,776,954.50
http:1,656,080.60
http:1,606,615.10
http:1,389,865.25
http:1,905,057.50
http:1,809,581.05
http:1,758,843.10
http:1,549,084.50


eTION REPORT 

July 8,2010 

TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 

FROM: Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
Steven J. Vandette, City Enginee~ 

SUBJECT: Private Agreement for Our Credit Union 
Project No.1 0.904.3 

Background: 

• 	 The Planning Commission granted preliminary site plan approval for the above referenced 
project on February 9,2010. The Engineering Department has reviewed the plans for this 
project and recommends approval. The plans include Water Main, Sanitary Manhole, ConcrE;lte 
Approach and Sidewalk, and Storm Water Pre-Treatment Structure. The site is located at the 
NW corner of Rochester Road and Lovell Street, section 3. 

Financial Considerations: 

• 	 The owner has provided the necessary escrow deposit and paid the cash fees in accordance 
with the attached Private Agreement. 

Legal Considerations: 

• There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

Policy Considerations: 

• 	 Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a 
changing and interconnected world. 

Options: 

• 	 Council can approve or deny the recommendation. 

cc: 	 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk (Original Agreement) 
James Nash, Financial Services Director 

Prepared by: Antonio Cicchetti, PE 
G:\Projects\Projects - 2010\10.904.3 - Our Credit Union - 6693 Rochester 

pallottaba
Text Box
J-05

pallottaba
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by pallottaba



City Of Troy 
Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements 

(Private Agreement) 

Project No.: 10.904.3 Project Location: NE 1/4 Section 3 
Resolution No: Date of Council Approval: 

------------~~------------------------

This Contract, made and entered into this 0i i.. day of~, 20 (0 by and between the 
City of Troy, a Michigan Municipal Corporation of the Countybf Oakland, Michigan, hereinafter 
referred to as "City" and GJ Perelli Company whose address is 222 East Merrill. Suite 101. 
Birmingham. MI 48009 and whose telephone number is 248-646-1717 hereinafter referred to as 
"Owners", provides as follows: 

FIRST: That the City agrees to permit the installation of Water Main. Sanitary Manhole. Concrete 
Approach and Sidewalk. and Storm Water Pre-Treatment Structure in accordance with plans prepared 
by Apex Engineering Group Inc. whose address is 560 Whims Lane. Rochester. MI48306 and whose 
telephone number is 586-876-3947 and approved prior to construction by the City in accordance 
with City of Troy specifications. 

SECOND: That the Owners agree to provide the following securities to the City prior to the start 
of construction, in accordance with the Detailed Summary of Required Deposits & Fees 
(attached hereto and incorporated herein): 

Refundable escrow deposit equal to the estimated construction cost of $ 50,211.00. This 
amount will be deposited with the City in the form of (check one): 

Cash 0 
Certificate of Deposit & 10% Cash D 
Irrevocable Bank Letter of Credit & 10% Cash D 
Check ~ 
Performance Bond & 10% Cash D 

Refundable cash deposit in the amount of $ 10,521.00. This amount will be deposited with the 
City in the form of (check one): 

Cash Check 

Non-refundable cash fees in the amount of $6,573.00. This amount will be paid to the City in 
the form of (check one): 

Cash o Check 

Said refundable escrow deposits shall be disbursed to the Owners after approval by the City. 
The City reserves the right to retain a minimum of ten (10) percent for each escrowed item until 
the entire site/development has received final inspection and final approval by all City 
departments. Refundable cash deposits shall be held until final approval has been issued. 
Disbursements shall be made by the City within a reasonable time, after request for refund of 
deposits is made by the Owners. 

http:6,573.00
http:10,521.00
http:50,211.00


City Of Troy 
Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements 

(Private Agreement) 

"rHIRD: The owners shall contract for construction of said improvement with a qualified 
contractor. Owners, or their agents, and contractor(s) agree to arrange for a pre-construction 
meeting with the City Engineer prior to start of work. All municipal improvements must be 
completely staked in the field under the direct supervision of a registered civil engineer or 
registered land surveyor, in accordance with the approved plans. Revisions to approved plans 
required by unexpected or unknown conflicts in the field shall be made as directed by the City. 

FOURTH: Owners agree that if, for any reason, the total cost of completion of such 
improvements shall exceed the sums detailed in Paragraph SECOND hereof, that Owners will 
immediately, upon notification by the City, remit such additional amounts in accordance with 
Paragraph SECOND hereof. In the event the total cost of completion shall be less than the 
sums as detailed in Paragraph SECOND hereof, City will refund to the Owners the excess funds 
remaining after disbursement of funds. 

FIFTH: Owners agree to indemnify and save harmless City, their agents and employees, from 
and against all loss or expense (including costs and attorneys' fees) by reason of liability 
imposed by law upon the City, its agents and employees for damages because of bodily injury, 
including death, at any time resulting therefrom sustained by any person or persons or on 
account of damage to property, including work, provided such injury to persons or damage to 
property is due or claimed to be due to negligence of the Owner, his contractor, or 
subcontractors, employees or agents, Owner further agrees to obtain and convey to the City all 
necessary easements and/or right-of-way for such public utilities as required by the City 
Engineer. 

20f3 



7/tMf[$ 12it.!1def.Jltr.J; 

City Of Troy 
Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements 

(Private Agreement) 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this agreement to be executed in 
duplicate on this of _______ 

S«~ :~TY OF TROY 

Ih3/~_____ 
Please Print or Type Louise Schilling, Mayor 

Please Print or Type Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 

STATE OF MICHIGAN, COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

On this (p'-lh day of ~ , AD,20 I () ,before me personally 
appeared T/1Ofn::Ls Zcur>befG known by me 
to be the same person(s) who executed this instrument and who acknowledged this to be 
his/her/their free act and deed. 

NOTARY PUBLIC, Oakland County, Michigan 

My commission expires: at/- z 02/210 

JENNIFER COBB 

Notary Public, State of Michigan 


County of Oakland 

My; Commission EXPire~~. 

Acting In the County of ~ 

30f3 



Detailed Summary of Required Deposits & Fees 
Our Credit Union 

10.904.3 

ESCROW DEPOSITS (PUBLIC): 

Sanitary Sewers 

Water Mains 

Paving 

Sidewalks 

Storm Improvements 

Excavation for Flood Plain at Dennis Powers Drain 

Underground Pre~Treatment Storm Water Structure 


TOTAL ESCROW DEPOSITS (Refundable): 


CASH FEES (Non-Refundable): 

Engineering Review Fee (Private Improvements)(PA 1) 

Water Main Testing and Chlorination (PA 2) 

Plan Review and Construction Inspection Fee (Public Improvements) (PA 1) 

Soil Erosion/Sedimentation Control Commercial Permit Fee (SUB 10) 

Soil Erosion/Sedimentation Control Commercial Inspection Fee (SUB 10) 

Less Initial Engineering Review Fee (Public & Private)(1.1 %) 


TOTAL CASH FEES (Non-Refundable): 


CASH DEPOSITS (Refundable): 
Street Cleaning/Road Maintenance 
Soil Erosion/Sedimentation Control Repair, Replace, or Maintenance 
Punch!ist &Restoration 

TOTAL CASH DEPOSITS (Refundable): 

Total Escrow & Cash Deoposits (Refundable): 

Total Cash Fees (Non-Refundable): 

Total Amount: 

$3,000 
$10,550 
$17,091 

$5,130 
$6,440 
$3,000 
$5,000 

$2,343 

$650 


$4;t}6?- L(() fc 
$400 
$500 

-$1,386 

$6,513 

$5,000 

$500 


$5,021 


$10,521 

$60,132 

$6,513 

$67,305 

k CITY TROY 
TREASURER'S OFFICE 



 
 

July 21, 2010 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 

 
FROM: Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 
SUBJECT: Chapter 106 – Traffic; “Driving While Distracted Ordinance”   
  
Background: 
 
  City Council approved revisions made to Chapter 106 – Traffic; Driving While Distracted 

Ordinance at their July 12, 2010 Regular meeting. Following the meeting, it was 
discovered that the approved amendment required an additional renumbering revision. 
The attached text includes the corrected version of the text amendment 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
  There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
  There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
  There are no policy considerations associated with this item. 
 
Options: 
 
  City Council can approve. 
 

 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
J-06

pallottaba
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by pallottaba



 
 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 

CHAPTER 106 OF THE CODE  
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
The City of Troy ordains:  
 
Section 1. Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 106, Traffic, of 
the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 106 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended as follows: 
 
5.14cd. Drag Races Prohibited; "Drag Racing" Defined; Violation Punishable as 

Misdemeanor. 
 

1)  A person shall not operate a vehicle on any highway or other place 
 open to the general public, including any area designated for the 
 parking of motor vehicles, in a speed or acceleration contest or for the 
 purpose of making a speed record, whether from a standing start or 
 otherwise, over a measured or unmeasured distance, and shall not 
 participate in drag racing as defined in subsection (2) of this section. 

 
2) "Drag racing" means the operation of 2 or more vehicles from a point 

side-by-side at accelerating speeds in a competitive attempt to out 
distance each other over a common selected course or where timing is 
involved or where timing devices are used in competitive accelerations 
of speeds by participating vehicles. Persons who render assistance in 
any manner to such competitive use of vehicles shall be equally 
charged as participants. The operation of 2 or more vehicles either at 
speeds in excess of prima facie lawfully established speeds or rapidly 
accelerating from a common starting point to a speed in excess of such 
prima facie lawful speed is prima facie evidence of drag racing and is 
unlawful and shall be punished, upon conviction, as a misdemeanor. 

 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the time 
this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be consummated 
under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings were 
commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending 
prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or 
impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses 
committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be 



 
 

instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be 
continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of 
such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid or 
unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, 
whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a 
Regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the ___  
day of ______ 2010,  

 
 
                      

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



 

 
July 15, 2010 
 
                             
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager  
 
FROM:   Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Director     
    Gary Mayer, Chief of Police  
 
SUBJECT:   Bid Waiver: Police Gun Range Maintenance  
 
Background 
 The Police Department has regularly scheduled maintenance for the gun range.  
 Since 2005 we have used Meggitt Training Systems for maintenance and repairs  
 Meggitt Training System is the only certified contractor for our range equipment in the area. 
 Maintenance visits have increased from twice a year to three times per year due to increased 

usage by the Sterling Heights Police Department.  
 Cost for maintenance is $1,595.00 per visit. 
 Three (3) scheduled visits per year.  
 Contract for maintenance over three (3) years is $14,355.00. 
 
Financial Considerations 
 The City of Sterling Heights pays the City of Troy $8,000.00 per year for use of the range. This 

more than covers the cost of additional maintenance.   
 No additional staff is required.  
 Funds for this contract are currently budgeted in the Police department’s operating account 

101.301.13.322.7740.090.  
 
Legal Considerations 
 Formal bidding procedures are waived as no benefit would be derived from soliciting formal bids. 
 
Recommendation  
 City management recommends entering into a three (3) year contract with Meggitt Training 

Systems for the maintenance and repair of the Police department gun range.   
 
Reviewed as to form and legality: 
 
_____________________________   
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
Prepared by Sgt. Donald Ostrowski   
 
G:/Bid Award 10-11 New Format/Waiver - GunRangeMaintenance 07.10.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
J-07

pallottaba
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by pallottaba



Meggitt Training Systems Inc 
296 Brogdon Road, Suwanee, Georgia 30024, USA 

Tel: +1 678 288 1090
Fax: +1 678 288 1515

www.meggitttrainingsystems.com
www.meggitt.com

 

July 1, 2010             
                     
Troy Police Department 
500 West Big Beaver Rd 
Troy, MI  48084 
Attn: Craig Fitzpatrick            

 
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

 
 
1.1. This agreement, made and entered into this _____ of ________ 2010 by and between Meggitt 

Training Systems and the Troy Police Department. Under the terms of this agreement, Meggitt 
Training Systems will provide all labor, travel, expenses, etc., required to perform the 
maintenance and repairs, as needed, at the customer's facility.  This agreement provides for 3 
visit(s) per year to be scheduled in conjunction with other local area visits.  All work performed 
will be as described herein. Scheduling of this contract is pre-scheduled by the customer by 
month, specific day is the decision of both parties mutual agreement. 

  
 
2.1. The work  During each visit a certified Meggitt Training Systems technician will perform the 

following services: 
 
 1. Test for proper operation all components of the target conveying systems. 
 
 2. Check and adjust drive belts, cables, electrical connection, target stops, carriers, take up 

assemblies and all other components of the conveying system not mentioned herein.  
Any wheels, hardware, or pulleys needed will be supplied at an additional charge. 

 
 3. Lubricate, as required, all components requiring lubrication. 
 
   4. Clean the overhead track system of debris as required. 
 
 5. Repair as required any non-functioning target lane or component thereof. Including 

electronic assembles and the master control console. (parts extra) 
 
 6. Inspect all ballistic protection equipment including the bullet trap for improper wear and 

tear or the accumulation of lead and/or other debris. 
 
 7. During the course of work the Meggitt Training Systems  technician will provide the 

customer with basic instruction of maintenance and operation procedures.



   

 
3.1 Payment In consideration of the above, the customer agrees to pay Meggitt Training Systems 

within 30 days of the rendered services, the sum of $ 1595.00 USD per each visit provided 
under this agreement, plus the amount of parts used as authorized by the customer. 

 
4.1 This agreement may be renewed, subject to a renegotiated price, by the customer serving written 

notice on Meggitt Training Systems within 90 days of its expiration. 
 
4.2 Meggitt Training Systems agrees to provide the customer liability, and workman's compensation 

insurance in the aggregate amount of no less than two (2) million dollars or as is required by the 
customer including an endorsement on the Certificate of Insurance naming customer as an 
additional insured. 

 
4.3 All work completed under this contract will be covered by a 90 day parts and labor warranty. 
 
5.1  Exclusions Lead removal is not covered under this agreement, but can be provided under 

separate cover.  
 
6.1 Please indicate below when your fiscal budget year begins: July 1st  
 and the submittal deadline for all proposal renewals: 90 days prior to expiration 
 
7.1 Other Conditions: Please note that this contract will be for 9 visits, 3 visits a year for three years.  

Contract duration is 7-1-2010 thru 06-30-2013. 
 
 
 
Pursuant to the above terms and conditions this contract has been duly executed by the following parties. 
 
 
 
_____________________________  __________________________   
 Dave Rhine                 Troy Police Department 
    
Meggitt Training Systems    CITY OF TROY 
296 Brogdon Road     
Suwanee, GA 30024    ___________________________  
Phone: 612-216-3784  Fax: 612-216-3790 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
      ___________________________  
      Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk  
       
      500 W Big Beaver Road 
      Troy Michigan 48084  
Resolution # ______________________         
          



OUNCIL CTION EPORT 


July 19, 2010 

TO: John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 

FROM: Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer:;;,--' 

SUB..IECT: Private Agreement for Kilmer PUD 10 
Project No. 08.921.3 

Recommendation: 

• 	 The Engineering Department has reviewed the plans for this· project and recommends approval. 
The plans include sanitary sewer, storm sewer, water main, paving, soil erosion and 
landscaping. The site is located on the north of Big Beaver and east of Kilmer in Section 22. 

Financial Considerations: 

• 	 The owner has provided the necessary escrow deposit and paid the cash fees in accordance 
with the attached Private Agreement. 

Legal Considerations: 

• There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

Policy Considerations: 

• 	 Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a 

changing and interconnected world. 


cc: 	 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk (Original Agreement) 
James Nash, Financial Services Director 

Prepared by: G. Scott Finlay, PE 
G:\Projects\Projects - 2008\08.921.3 - Kilmer PUD 10\Corespondence\Agenda Item Memo (commercial).doc 

pallottaba
Text Box
J-08

pallottaba
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by pallottaba



City Of Troy 

Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements 


(Private Agreement) 


No.: 08.921.3 Project Location: SW 1/4 Section 22 
Resolution No: Resolution Number Date of Council Approval: Council Approval Date 

This Contract, made and entered into this 26th day of July, 2010 by and between the City of 
Troy, a Michigan Municipal Corporation of the County of Oakland, Michigan, hereinafter referred 
to as "City" and T.H. Marsh Constrcution Co. whose address is 300 Balmoral Centre, 32121 Woodward 
Ave., Royal Oak, MI 48073 and whose telephone number is 248-5864130 hereinafter referred to as 
"Owners", provides as follows: 

FIRST: That the City agrees to permit the installation of sanitary sewer, storm sewer, water main, 
paving, soil erosion and landscaping in accordance with plans prepared by Professional Engineers 
Associates whose address is 2430 RochesterCt., Sutie 100, Troy, MI 48083 and whose telephone 
number is 248-689-9090 and approved prior to construction by the City in accordance with City of 
Troy specifications. 

SECOND: That the Owners agree to provide the following securities to the City prior to the start 
of construction, in accordance with the Detailed Summary of Required DepOSits & Fees 
(attached hereto and incorporated herein): 

Refundable escrow deposit equal to the estimated construction cost of $ 142,772.00. This 
amount will be deposited with the City in the form of (check one): 

Cash 
Certificate of Deposit & 10% Cash 
Irrevocable Bank Letter of Credit & 10% Cash 
Check 
Performance Bond & 10% Cash 

Refundable cash deposit in the amount of $ 21.777.00. This amount will be deposited with the 
City in the form of (check one): 

Cash Check o 
Non-refundable cash fees in the amount of $14,670.00. This amount will be paid to the City in 
the form of (check one): 

Cash Check o 
Said refundable escrow deposits shall be disbursed to the Owners after approval by the City. 
The City reserves the right to retain a minimum of ten (10) percent for each escrowed item until 
the entire site/development has received final inspection and final approval by all City 
departments. Refundable cash deposits shall be held until final approval has been issued. 
Disbursements shall be made by the City within a reasonable time, after request for refund of 
deposits is made by the Owners. 

http:14,670.00
http:21.777.00
http:142,772.00


City Of Troy 

Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements 


(Private Agreement) 


THIRD: The owners shall contract for construction of said improvement with a qualified 
contractor. Owners, or their agents, and contractor(s) agree to arrange for a pre-construction 
meeting with the City Engineer prior to start of work. All municipal improvements must be 
completely staked in the field under the direct supervision of a registered civil engineer or 
registered land surveyor, in accordance with the approved plans. Revisions to approved plans 
required by unexpected or unknown conflicts in the field shall be made as directed by the City. 

FOURTH: Owners agree that if, for any reason, the total cost of completion of such 
improvements shall exceed the sums detailed in Paragraph SECOND hereof, that Owners will 
immediately, upon notification by the City, remit such additional amounts in accordance with 
Paragraph SECOND hereof. In the event the total cost of completion shall be less than the 
sums as detailed in Paragraph SECOND hereof, City will refund to the Owners the excess funds 
remaining after disbursement of funds. 

FIFTH: Owners agree to indemnify and save harmless City, their agents and employees, from 
and against all loss or expense (including costs and attorneys' fees) by reason of liability 
imposed by law upon the City, its agents and employees for damqges because of bodily injury, 
including death, at any time resulting therefrom sustained by any person or persons or on 
account of damage to property, including work, provided such injury to persons or damage to 
property is due or claimed to be due to negligence of the Owner, his contractor, or 
subcontractors, employees or agents, Owner further agrees to obtain and convey to the City all 
necessary easements and/or right-of-way for such public utilities as required by the City 
Engineer. 

20f3 



City Of Troy 

Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements 


(Private Agreement) 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF. the parties heretojl.av caused this agreement to be executed in 
duplicate on this ~t1..- day of ~J .... ,20 I () 

OWNERS CITY OF TROY 

By: N"r-&l.. .. 6&&Hc.k, A-n~40I'II.e. L.L l. By: 
I 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

Rylt'" S. M... r{l 

"'\~ ~"'"() oLr 
Please PFiRt or TYlge Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 

STATE OF MICHIGAN, COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

On this ,A.D.20 /a ,before me personally 
appeared r known by me 
to be the same erson(s) who executed this instrument and who acknowledged this to be 
his/her/their free act and deed. 

NOTARY PUBLIC, 8aMaftd County, Michigan 
w''-'1 N ' 

My commission expires: ~, (~ )'0/ Y 

30f3 

http:heretojl.av


Detailed Summary of Required Deposits & Fees 

Kilmer PUD #10 


08.921.3 


ESCROW DEPOSITS (PUBLIC): 

Sanitary Sewers 

Water Mains 

Paving 

Sidewalks 


TOTAL ESCROW DEPOSITS (Refundable): 


CASH FEES (Non-Refundable): 

Engineering Review Fee (Private Improvements)(PA1) 

Water Main Testing and Chlorination (PA 2) 

Plan Review and Construction Inspection Fee (Public Improvements) (PA 1) 

Less Initial Engineering Review Fee (Public & Private)(1.1 %) 


TOTAL CASH FEES (Non-Refundable): 


CASH DEPOSITS (Refundable): 

Street Cleaning/Road Maintenance 

Soil Erosion/Sedimentation Control Repair, Replace, or Maintenance 

Punchlist & Restoration 


TOTAL CASH DEPOSITS (Refundable): 


Total Escrow & Cash Deoposits (Refundable): 


Total Cash Fees (Non-Refundable): 


Total Amount: 


$26,525 
$91,791 
$19,500 

$4,956 

$142,772 

$7,828 
$980 

$11,094 

$14,670 

$5,000 
$2,500 

$14,277 

$21.777 

$164,549 

$14.670 

$179.219 



1 

TROY HISTORIC COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL March 23, 2010 
 
The regular meeting of the Troy Historic Commission was held Tuesday, March 23, 
2010 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. Rosemary Kornacki called the meeting to 
order at 7:35 P.M.  
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT:     Rosemary Kornacki 
  Roger Kaniarz 
  Kevin Lindsey 
  Terry Navratil 

Brian Wattles 
       Padma Kuppa 
       Vera Milz 
       Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager 

         
Resolution #HC-2010-03-001 
Moved by Lindsey 
Seconded by Navratil 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the January 26, 2010 meeting be approved  
Yes: 7  Kornacki, Kaniarz, Lindsey, Navratil, Wattles, Kuppa and Milz  
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
  
Old Business 

A. Capital Projects 
Eagle Scout candidate Dane Nowosatko will complete the Print Shop strip and 
stain project by June 30, 2010.  
          

B.  Programs  
The staff is only organizing a few volunteer based activities for the summer 
because of layoffs and because a new schedule of public hours of operation has 
not been approved. 
 

C. Attendance 
       The commission reviewed quarterly attendance reports.  

 
D. Collections 
    The commission reviewed the monthly collections reports.  
 

E. Interpretive Master Plan (IMP) 
The IMP edits have been completed. A pdf will be provided to the Commission. 
 

F. Volunteer Orientation and Training 
A meeting of all volunteers has been scheduled on April 5.   

pallottaba
Text Box
N-01a

pallottaba
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by pallottaba



2 

 
G. Interpreter’s Manual 

The manual has been completed. A pdf will be provided to the Commission 
members.  
 

H. Intern 
 Brianne Riesterer will complete her internship on April 15.  

 
I. Budget FY 2010/11 

Loraine submitted a post-millage budget that eliminates ten positions and 
reduces the museum’s operation budget $272,970.  She will recruit volunteers to 
help staff a reduced schedule of public hours of operation that has been 
submitted to city administration for council approval. 
 

J. Museum Organizational Structure 
The commission discussed a potential model for restructuring museum 
operations and funding.  

 
New Business 

  
A. Troy Historical Society 

All projects are on hold.  The THS will meet with city management after the 
FY2010/11 Budget is approved by council. 

 
B. Reports and Communications 

Staff 
No report. 

 
Commission Members 
No report. 

 
The Troy Historic Commission Meeting was adjourned at 9:55 p.m. The next regular 
meeting will be held Tuesday, June 22, 2010 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village at 
7:00 pm. this meeting begins with the annual inspection tour of the buildings. 
 

 
                  
Rosemary Kornacki 
Chairperson 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 22, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Hutson at 7:30 p.m. on June 22, 2010 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds John J. Tagle 
Michael W. Hutson Mark J. Vleck 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Wanda Norman, Planning Department Intern 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 

 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
Resolution # PC-2010-06-039 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes:  All present (7) 
Absent: Tagle, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2010-06-040 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the June 8, 2010 Regular meeting as 
prepared. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Maxwell, Sanzica, Schultz, Ullmann 
Abstain: Strat 
Absent: Tagle, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-01b

pallottaba
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by pallottaba



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 22, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Edmunds reported on the June 15, 2010 Board of Zoning Appeals meeting. 
 

 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant announced there has been no recent meeting of the Downtown 
Development Authority. 
 

 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant reported on the following items, approved by City Council at their June 21, 
2010 meeting.   
 Special Use Request and Preliminary Site Plan Approval (File Number SU 379) – Big 

Beaver Tavern Outdoor Seating, 645 E. Big Beaver. 
 Rezoning Request (File Number Z 737) – Troy Sports Center, Northwest Corner of 

John R and Big Beaver, from O-1 to B-2. 
 
Mr. Savidant announced that a joint meeting with the City of Birmingham is tentatively 
scheduled on Wednesday, July 14, 2010, at 6:00 p.m. to consider Preliminary Site Plan 
approval of the transit center. 
 
Mr. Branigan addressed the status of the Zoning Ordinance re-write. 
 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 
8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 962) – Proposed InPro 

Insurance Group Office Building Addition, North side of Big Beaver Road, East of 
John R (2095 E. Big Beaver), Section 24, Currently Zoned O-1 (Office Building) 
District (Consent Judgment) 
 
Mr. Branigan gave a report on the proposed Preliminary Site Plan and request to 
install a compressed oxygen tank for a new tenant.  The applicant proposes to 
vacate existing cross access easements to accommodate the oxygen tank.  Mr. 
Branigan addressed the two existing cross access easements at 2051 and 2095 E. 
Big Beaver that are now obsolete as a result of established uses and build out of 
both sites.  He indicated support to vacate both easements. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 22, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Mr. Branigan said the Board might want to consider asking the applicant to provide 
a cross access easement to the east, for which a Planned Unit Development (PUD) 
is approved.  He addressed two potential issues in requesting a cross access 
easement to the east: 
 No major regional benefit (no cross access to the west). 
 The site would lose four (4) parking spaces. 

 
Mr. Branigan confirmed departmental reviews indicated no special comments or 
special requirements for housing an oxygen tank on site.   
 
Discussion followed on a cross access easement to the east: 
 Intent of PUD site plan approval to provide cross access easement. 
 Standard City procedure for cross access easements. 
 Physical improvements relating to cross access easements. 
 Loss of parking spaces; no parking study completed. 
 Condition(s) to site plan approval; retain existing parking until such time that 

PUD is constructed. 
 Cut-through traffic. 
 Site maneuverability. 
 Future redevelopment. 

 
Chair Hutson expressed concern with the applicant’s parking lot turning into a 
thoroughfare for the PUD. 
 
Mr. Branigan said the Planning Department discussed that point.  He said basically 
if the site were to re-develop as another use other than office, the cross access 
easement might make more sense.  With the existing use, the cross access 
easement might be used only for short distance driving/parking and cut-through 
traffic to avoid potential traffic queuing on the PUD site. 
 
David Goodman, owner of Goodman Investments and InPro Insurance Group, of 
2840 Ashbury Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Goodman addressed a cross access 
easement to the east.  He asked the Board to take into consideration the existing 
masonry wall in the parking lot and the loss of parking spaces.  He addressed the 
building tenancy as relates to the number of employees and parking needs.  He 
also addressed the maneuverability of delivery trucks on site. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-06-041 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission recommends to City Council that 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed InPro Insurance 
Group Office Building Addition, located on the north side of Big Beaver, east of John 
R, in Section 24, within the O-1 zoning district, be granted, subject to the following 
conditions: 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 22, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

1. A cross access easement is granted to the property to the east in the northeast 
corner of the InPro Insurance Group property.  InPro Insurance Group shall 
execute an agreement to construct same at the City’s request. 

2. That a parking adjustment of four (4) spaces is granted per Section 40.20.12. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Maxwell, Sanzica, Schultz, Strat, Ullmann 
No: Hutson 
Absent: Tagle, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Hutson said his no vote is based on his concern expressed during discussion. 
 
 

9. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 960) – Proposed Vehma 
International Improvements, Northwest Corner of Stephenson Hwy and Rankin 
(1055 Stephenson Hwy), Section 35, Currently Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Branigan briefly reviewed the Planning Consultant report and noted the 
Preliminary Site Plan meets all Zoning Ordinance requirements. 
 
Kevin Biddison of Biddison Architecture, 850 Stephenson Highway, Troy, was 
present.   
 
Thomas Kemp of Kemp & Peyerk Development, 275 W. Girard, Madison Heights, 
was present.   
 
There was discussion on: 
 Stormwater management. 
 Screening of vehicles from Stephenson Highway. 

 
Mr. Branigan stated the regional stormwater retention for the property is in need of 
improvements, and noted the Planning Commission does not have the ability to 
condition site plan approval on that provision. 
 
Mr. Biddison informed the members that construction of a berm along Stephenson 
Highway would impact existing trees in that area.   
 
Mr. Kemp expressed willingness to work with the Planning Commission to screen 
vehicles along Stephenson, but he would like to retain the existing trees. 
 
There was a brief discussion on the design of a berm and working around the 
existing trees. 
 
Mr. Forsyth reminded the members of their role as Planning Commissioners.  He 
noted the Preliminary Site Plan application for consideration this evening meets all 
requirements of the Zoning Ordinance.  He said the Board can ask the petitioner to 
voluntarily construct a berm, but it is not a requirement. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 22, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2010-06-042 
Moved by: Maxwell 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 

WHEREAS, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Section 03.40.03 of 
the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Vehma International 
Improvements, located on the Northwest corner of Stephenson and Rankin (1055 
Stephenson), in Section 35, within the M-1 zoning district, be granted. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Maxwell, Sanzica, Schultz 
No: Edmunds, Strat, Ullmann 
Absent: Tagle, Vleck 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-06-043 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 

MOVE, To reconsider Resolution # PC-2010-06-042. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Tagle, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-06-044 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 

WHEREAS, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Section 03.40.03 of 
the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Vehma International 
Improvements, located on the northwest corner of Stephenson and Rankin (1055 
Stephenson), in Section 35, within the M-1 zoning district, be granted, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 
1. The petitioner has volunteered to place a berm along the Stephenson Road 

frontage to screen the majority of vehicles from view from Stephenson. 
2. That existing trees shall remain. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Following a brief discussion, it was noted that should the petitioner discover the 
berm too cumbersome to construct with the existing trees, the petitioner would be 
required to come back before the Planning Commission with a revised site plan. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 22, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Tagle, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Ullmann addressed water quality with respect to future redevelopment.  
 
Mr. Edmunds reported briefly on his attendance at the New Economy Series of free 
classes, as well as his accreditation with the Citizens Planner group.  He distributed 
booklets Chasing the Past, or Investing in our Future published by Land Policy 
Institute.  Mr. Edmunds also thanked Mr. Savidant on forwarding via email the 
Birchler Arroyo presentation. 
 
Mr. Maxwell shared film clips of deer “residing” in his back yard.  He asked that 
discussion of the deer population be placed on a future study meeting agenda. 
 
Mr. Forsyth said that effective July 1, the City Attorney’s office is implementing its 
rotation of legal representation on Boards and Committees.  Mr. Forsyth will 
represent the Board of Zoning Appeals, and Mr. Motzny will represent the Planning 
Commission.   
 
Everyone thanked Mr. Forsyth for his legal insight and wisdom. 
 
 

ADJOURN 
 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:23 p.m. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 22, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
       
Michael W. Hutson, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2010 PC Minutes\Draft\06-22-10 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL JUNE 22, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Hutson at 7:30 p.m. on June 22, 2010 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds John J. Tagle 
Michael W. Hutson Mark J. Vleck 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Wanda Norman, Planning Department Intern 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 

 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
Resolution # PC-2010-06-039 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes:  All present (7) 
Absent: Tagle, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2010-06-040 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the June 8, 2010 Regular meeting as 
prepared. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Maxwell, Sanzica, Schultz, Ullmann 
Abstain: Strat 
Absent: Tagle, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-01c

pallottaba
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by pallottaba



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL JUNE 22, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Edmunds reported on the June 15, 2010 Board of Zoning Appeals meeting. 
 

 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant announced there has been no recent meeting of the Downtown 
Development Authority. 
 

 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant reported on the following items, approved by City Council at their June 21, 
2010 meeting.   
 Special Use Request and Preliminary Site Plan Approval (File Number SU 379) – Big 

Beaver Tavern Outdoor Seating, 645 E. Big Beaver. 
 Rezoning Request (File Number Z 737) – Troy Sports Center, Northwest Corner of 

John R and Big Beaver, from O-1 to B-2. 
 
Mr. Savidant announced that a joint meeting with the City of Birmingham is tentatively 
scheduled on Wednesday, July 14, 2010, at 6:00 p.m. to consider Preliminary Site Plan 
approval of the transit center. 
 
Mr. Branigan addressed the status of the Zoning Ordinance re-write. 
 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 
8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 962) – Proposed InPro 

Insurance Group Office Building Addition, North side of Big Beaver Road, East of 
John R (2095 E. Big Beaver), Section 24, Currently Zoned O-1 (Office Building) 
District (Consent Judgment) 
 
Mr. Branigan gave a report on the proposed Preliminary Site Plan and request to 
install a compressed oxygen tank for a new tenant.  The applicant proposes to 
vacate existing cross access easements to accommodate the oxygen tank.  Mr. 
Branigan addressed the two existing cross access easements at 2051 and 2095 E. 
Big Beaver that are now obsolete as a result of established uses and build out of 
both sites.  He indicated support to vacate both easements. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL JUNE 22, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Mr. Branigan said the Board might want to consider asking the applicant to provide 
a cross access easement to the east, for which a Planned Unit Development (PUD) 
is approved.  He addressed two potential issues in requesting a cross access 
easement to the east: 
 No major regional benefit (no cross access to the west). 
 The site would lose four (4) parking spaces. 

 
Mr. Branigan confirmed departmental reviews indicated no special comments or 
special requirements for housing an oxygen tank on site.   
 
Discussion followed on a cross access easement to the east: 
 Intent of PUD site plan approval to provide cross access easement. 
 Standard City procedure for cross access easements. 
 Physical improvements relating to cross access easements. 
 Loss of parking spaces; no parking study completed. 
 Condition(s) to site plan approval; retain existing parking until such time that 

PUD is constructed. 
 Cut-through traffic. 
 Site maneuverability. 
 Future redevelopment. 

 
Chair Hutson expressed concern with the applicant’s parking lot turning into a 
thoroughfare for the PUD. 
 
Mr. Branigan said the Planning Department discussed that point.  He said basically 
if the site were to re-develop as another use other than office, the cross access 
easement might make more sense.  With the existing use, the cross access 
easement might be used only for short distance driving/parking and cut-through 
traffic to avoid potential traffic queuing on the PUD site. 
 
David Goodman, owner of Goodman Investments and InPro Insurance Group, of 
2840 Ashbury Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Goodman addressed a cross access 
easement to the east.  He asked the Board to take into consideration the existing 
masonry wall in the parking lot and the loss of parking spaces.  He addressed the 
building tenancy as relates to the number of employees and parking needs.  He 
also addressed the maneuverability of delivery trucks on site. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-06-041 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission recommends to City Council that 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed InPro Insurance 
Group Office Building Addition, located on the north side of Big Beaver, east of John 
R, in Section 24, within the O-1 zoning district, be granted, subject to the following 
conditions: 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL JUNE 22, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

1. A cross access easement is granted to the property to the east in the northeast 
corner of the InPro Insurance Group property.  InPro Insurance Group shall 
execute an agreement to construct same at the City’s request. 

2. That a parking adjustment of four (4) spaces is granted per Section 40.20.12. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Maxwell, Sanzica, Schultz, Strat, Ullmann 
No: Hutson 
Absent: Tagle, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Hutson said his no vote is based on his concern expressed during discussion. 
 
 

9. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 960) – Proposed Vehma 
International Improvements, Northwest Corner of Stephenson Hwy and Rankin 
(1055 Stephenson Hwy), Section 35, Currently Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Branigan briefly reviewed the Planning Consultant report and noted the 
Preliminary Site Plan meets all Zoning Ordinance requirements. 
 
Kevin Biddison of Biddison Architecture, 850 Stephenson Highway, Troy, was 
present.   
 
Thomas Kemp of Kemp & Peyerk Development, 275 W. Girard, Madison Heights, 
was present.   
 
There was discussion on: 
 Stormwater management. 
 Screening of vehicles from Stephenson Highway. 

 
Mr. Branigan stated the regional stormwater retention for the property is in need of 
improvements, and noted the Planning Commission does not have the ability to 
condition site plan approval on that provision. 
 
Mr. Biddison informed the members that construction of a berm along Stephenson 
Highway would impact existing trees in that area.   
 
Mr. Kemp expressed willingness to work with the Planning Commission to screen 
vehicles along Stephenson, but he would like to retain the existing trees. 
 
There was a brief discussion on the design of a berm and working around the 
existing trees. 
 
Mr. Forsyth reminded the members of their role as Planning Commissioners.  He 
noted the Preliminary Site Plan application for consideration this evening meets all 
requirements of the Zoning Ordinance.  He said the Board can ask the petitioner to 
voluntarily construct a berm, but it is not a requirement. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL JUNE 22, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2010-06-042 
Moved by: Maxwell 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 

WHEREAS, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Section 03.40.03 of 
the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Vehma International 
Improvements, located on the Northwest corner of Stephenson and Rankin (1055 
Stephenson), in Section 35, within the M-1 zoning district, be granted. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Maxwell, Sanzica, Schultz 
No: Edmunds, Strat, Ullmann 
Absent: Tagle, Vleck 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-06-043 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 

MOVE, To reconsider Resolution # PC-2010-06-042. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Tagle, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-06-044 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 

WHEREAS, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Section 03.40.03 of 
the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Vehma International 
Improvements, located on the northwest corner of Stephenson and Rankin (1055 
Stephenson), in Section 35, within the M-1 zoning district, be granted, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 
1. The petitioner has volunteered to place a berm along the Stephenson Road 

frontage to screen the majority of vehicles from view from Stephenson. 
2. That existing trees shall remain. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Following a brief discussion, it was noted that should the petitioner discover the 
berm too cumbersome to construct with the existing trees, the petitioner would be 
required to come back before the Planning Commission with a revised site plan. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL JUNE 22, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Tagle, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Ullmann addressed water quality with respect to future redevelopment.  
 
Mr. Edmunds reported briefly on his attendance at the New Economy Series of free 
classes, as well as his accreditation with the Citizens Planner group.  He distributed 
booklets Chasing the Past, or Investing in our Future published by Land Policy 
Institute.  Mr. Edmunds also thanked Mr. Savidant on forwarding via email the 
Birchler Arroyo presentation. 
 
Mr. Maxwell shared film clips of deer “residing” in his back yard.  He asked that 
discussion of the deer population be placed on a future study meeting agenda. 
 
Mr. Forsyth said that effective July 1, the City Attorney’s office is implementing its 
rotation of legal representation on Boards and Committees.  Mr. Forsyth will 
represent the Board of Zoning Appeals, and Mr. Motzny will represent the Planning 
Commission.   
 
Everyone thanked Mr. Forsyth for his legal insight and wisdom. 
 
 

ADJOURN 
 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:23 p.m. 
 





 

 
 
July 14, 2010 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
 
SUBJECT: Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – June 2010  
 
Background 
 
 Resolution #2004-02-075 established the auction fee of 5% and provided approval to use 

BidCorp with the provision that other on-line auction service options would be considered.  
BidNet moved forward and implemented an on-line surplus auction service for the MITN 
System (Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network), which can be accessed through 
the City of Troy home web page.  MITN is the official e-procurement website used by the 
City for posting bids, tabulations, quotations, and award information. It was a Purchasing 
goal that one e-procurement site would be operational for all functions. 

 
Financial Considerations 
 
 In compliance with Resolution #2004-02-075, final reporting is being presented for, seven 

(7) Dell desktop computers with monitors and one (1) magazine rack auctioned on-line 
through BidNet, the City’s e-procurement website, from June 9, 2010 and closed by, June 
21, 2010.   

 
 Final reporting is also being presented for one (1) 2001 Dodge 2.5 yd dump 4WD truck, 

one (1) 1978 Ford tractor w/broom, one (1) 2001 Dodge Stratus, one (1) 2003 Pontiac 
Bonneville, one (1) 2001 Ford Crown Vic, and one (1) 2004 Ford Crown Vic auctioned on-
line through BidNet, the City’s e-procurement website, from June 10, 2010 and closed by 
June 16, 2010.    

 
1 of 2 

              CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-02a

pallottaba
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by pallottaba



July 14, 2010 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services –June, 2010  
         
 
Financial Considerations - continued 
 
Final sale amounts and fees are listed below:     
DESCRIPTION PROCEEDS SUB-TOTAL NET INCOME

Dell desktop computers w/monitors & magazine rack   $           318.08    

Vehicles          26,804.00   
5% Buyers’ premium – for Auction Fees            1,340.20   

    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:  $28,462.28  
 FEES:   
5% (Dell desktops computers w/monitors, etc) Fee        ($     15.91)   
5% on Vehicles (paid back thru buyer’s premium)        ($1,340.20)   
$5.00 for each Feature Item (4 vehicles)        ($     20.00)   
                                                             SUB-TOTAL:      ($1,376.11)  

Sales Tax +6%,(Dell desktop computers w/monitors)    $          19.10   
Sales Tax (None on Vehicles):                   0.00   

    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:  $       19.10  
 

   

    $ 27,105.27
 
Legal Considerations 
 
 Farmington Hills, Michigan was the lead agency for the bid process for an on-line 

auction website.  Resolution #2004-02-075. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 Sale of surplus property is a statutory requirement of the Purchasing Department. 

(Chapter 7, Sec 8), no perceived Policy consideration is associated with this item.  
 

Options 
 
 To report final results of June 2010 auctions to City management. 
 
 No action required 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 
 

G:Agenda-Final Reporting-BidNet on line– June 2010  



From: Mary F Redden on behalf of John Szerlag
To: "Jerome Katz"
Cc: 000schilling@ameritech.net; Dane Slater (djlkslater@aol.com); Mary Kerwin (marykerwin5@hotmail.com);

Maureen M. McGinnis (mmcginnis@dmcginnis.com); mfhowryl@umich.edu; rbeltram@wideopenwest.com;
Wade Fleming; wade.fleming@proforma.com

Subject: RE: MEGA Meeting
Date: Tuesday, July 20, 2010 4:05:05 PM

Dear Jerome:
 
Thank you for your kind words, and for coaching me in advance of the meeting on
presentation protocol.  I enjoyed speaking on behalf of Meritor Heavy Vehicle
Systems, LLC (Arvin Meritor); Creative Breakthroughs, Inc.; Genesis Corporation;
and Inteva Products, LLC.  The collective number of jobs to be retained/created from
these fine companies is 527.
 
And yes, the Troy City Council understands that all things will end, including this
recession.  When it does, the City wants to be in a competitive position to continue to
attract and retain employers in the fine city of Troy.
 
This includes not only incentives, but creating an organizational atmosphere that
promotes professionalism, competency and expediency during the site plan review
and inspection process. 
 
I look forward to working with you on future projects.  In the meantime, please advise
your corporate contacts on how cool we are in Troy.
 
Very truly yours,
 
John Szerlag
Troy City Manager
 
From: Jerome Katz [mailto:katzj@michigan.org] 
Sent: Tuesday, July 20, 2010 1:48 PM
To: John Szerlag
Cc: Pamela L Valentik
Subject: MEGA Meeting
 
July 20, 2010
 
 
Mr. John Szerlag
City Manager
City of Troy
500 West Big Beaver Road
Troy, Michigan 48084-5285

Dear John:
 
 

mailto:/O=CITY OF TROY/OU=CITYOFTROY/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=REDDENMF
mailto:/O=CITY OF TROY/OU=CITYOFTROY/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SZERLAGAJ
mailto:katzj@michigan.org
mailto:000schilling@ameritech.net
mailto:djlkslater@aol.com
mailto:marykerwin5@hotmail.com
mailto:mmcginnis@dmcginnis.com
mailto:mfhowryl@umich.edu
mailto:rbeltram@wideopenwest.com
mailto:Wade.Fleming@troymi.gov
mailto:wade.fleming@proforma.com
pallottaba
Text Box
N-03a

pallottaba
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by pallottaba



First, I want to thank you very much for attending the MEGA meeting this morning (your
first). With four projects for you/Troy, it was really “trial by fire” for you, but hopefully it was
a good experience for you as well. I think you’re actually attending and speaking at the
meeting helped you understand the importance of the MEGA program and Troy’s support
of the program and the companies that locate in the city. Next, I hope you can pass along
to your council how important it is for them to support the MEDC programs and the
companies that receive these tax credits and abatements. Often, as you heard personally,
this is what pushed the project over the top and allows companies to locate and/or grow in
Michigan and Troy. Finally, this letter would not be complete without mentioning all the
time and hard work that Pam Valentik exerts with Troy companies all the time. She is on
the ground meeting with these companies, doing the day to day work that is required to
bring these projects to fruition, and I can’t begin to tell you how supportive and helpful she
has been to me in these endeavors and successes. I am very glad I have her available to
work with me for the City of Troy. Thanks again, and I look forward to working on many
more projects such as today, in Troy.
 
Sincerely,
Jerome Katz
Business Development Manager
Michigan Economic Development Corporation
517-749-3603 (cell)
katzj@michigan.org
www.michiganadvantage.org
 
Please note my land line at 517-241-9464 was disconnected on April 1, 2010.  Please contact me via
email or my cell phone.  Thanks!
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 



pallottaba
Text Box
N-04a

pallottaba
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by pallottaba













 

 
 
 
July 13, 2010 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 
FROM: Gary Mayer, Chief of Police 
  James Feld, Police Officer 
 
 
SUBJECT: Proof of TIPS/TAMS Server Training 
 

 During the Troy City Council Hearings scheduled March 1, 2010 and March 15, 2010 the following 
establishments were given notice to appear for a series of public hearings regarding alleged violations 
of SALES TO MINOR (DPU) (Compliance Test) and for one establishment for Allowing Fight on 
License Premises and Allowing Persons (other than employee) After Hours: 

 
- Marriott International, Inc. / WHP Hotel LLC (dba: Troy Marriott) 200 West Big Beaver Road (date 

of violation May 7, 2009) 
- Charles Edward Post 14, The American Legion 1340 West Maple Road (date of violation May 7, 

2009) 
- Joseph Koolisky’s LLC (dba: Joe Kool’s) 1835 East Big Beaver Road (date of violation May 7, 

2009) 
- San Marino Club, Inc. (dba: San Marino Catering Hall / Tre Monti Restaurant) 1685 East Big 

Beaver Road (date of violation May 7, 2009) 
- Mar-Bill Inc. (dba: Parrott Cove Yacht Club) 33475 Dequindre  (date of violations May 7, 2009 and 

October 28, 2009) 
- McCormick and Schmick Restaurant Corp. (dba McCormick and Schmick Seafood Restaurant) 

2850 Coolidge Highway (date of violation October 28, 2009) 
- Kruse and Muer Troy, LLC (dba: Kruse and Muer on Wilshire) 911 Wilshire Road (date of violation 

December 17, 2009) 
- MEI Holdings, LLC / Troy Hotel Property LLC (dba: Hilton Homewood Suites) 1495 Equity West 

(date of violation October 28, 2009) 
- Yara, Inc. (dba: Lebanese Grill) 1600 Rochester Road (date of violations March 22, 2009) 

 
 The City Council of Troy, after due notice, RECOMMENDED to the Michigan Liquor Control 

Commission that the nine above establishments in the City of Troy, have their appropriate liquor 
licenses BE RENEWED with the STIPULATION that all employees be TIPS or TAMS trained and that 
the Licensees provide proof of training to the Troy Police Department within ninety (90) days. 
 

 All nine establishments provided the Troy Police Department with proof of TIPS or TAMS training within 
the required 90 days.   

            CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-05

pallottaba
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by pallottaba

pallottaba
Text Box
N-05



G:\   City Council\ Agenda\Clerk Council Agenda Items\Rules of Procedure Public Comment Maryann Bernardi 2010.07.12.doc 
 

 
  
Date July 22, 2010 

 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 

 
FROM: Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 
SUBJECT: July 12, 2010 City Council Meeting - Public Comment – Maryann Bernardi 
  
Background: 
 
  Maryann Bernardi was in attendance for the N. Study Session portion of the July 12, 2010 

Regular City Council Meeting. At the conclusion of the N. portion of the Agenda. The Mayor 
questioned whether Council should entertain Public Comment. City Manager Szerlag 
reported that the meeting was a Regular Council meeting and that Public Comment was 
handled earlier in the meeting. Pursuant to the City Council’s Rules of Procedure, Item 6, 
Regular Council Meeting Order of Business, Public Comment was taken earlier in the 
meeting. City Attorney Bluhm commented, when solicited for input by the Mayor, that 
Council could entertain Public Comment if they so desired.   

  
  The Manager and Attorney correctly responded in practice and in procedure. City Council 

in the matter of public comment during a Regular meeting. Stating that public comments 
are provided in the Order of Business as Agenda Item F. Council can however, suspend 
City Council Rules of Procedure Rule Number 6 and amend the order of business to allow 
for Public Comment to occur during any portion of the agenda. 

  
  Unfortunately, the second Public Comment opportunity at the Regular meeting of July 12, 

2010 occurred without a suspension of the Council’s Rules of Procedure and was therefore 
out of order. There is no apparent legal implication associated with this exception; however 
it is a deviation of both the Council’s Rules of Procedure and Council’s practice of following 
the established Regular Meeting Order of Business. 

  
 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-06

pallottaba
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by pallottaba



  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney   
DATE: July 21, 2010 
SUBJECT: Motion filed by Grand Sawka regarding Transit Center Property     

 

 The City acquired the Transit Center property through the Consent Judgment for 
the 77 acre Midtown Development at Maple and Coolidge, dated May 4, 1999.  This 
Consent Judgment was subsequently amended and restated on June 2, 2000.  Pursuant 
to the terms of this Consent Judgment, Grand Sakwa was permitted to construct a mixed 
commercial and residential development, even though our zoning ordinance at the time 
did not allow for planned unit developments.  The Consent Judgment required Grand 
Sakwa to conditionally transfer the Transit Center property to the City of Troy.  The 
Transit Center property is the triangle piece of property that is located adjacent to the 
City of Birmingham, and is to the west of the commercial development.  The location of 
the railroad tracks made this location ideal for a transportation center.   
 
 Under the terms of the Consent Judgment, Grand Sakwa was to convey the land 
to the City for use as a Transportation Center.  If the property was not used for a 
Transportation Center, then it would revert to Grand Sakwa.  The Consent Judgment 
required the City to “fund” the Transportation Center within ten years from the date of the 
Judgment (June 2, 2010).  The City has been the legal owner of this property since June 
22, 2001, when the warranty deed was recorded with the Register of Deeds.   
 
 Pursuant to the terms of the Consent Judgment, Oakland County Judge Wendy 
Potts retained jurisdiction to resolve any issues that arise with this case.  Recently, 
Grand Sakwa has filed two motions.  The first motion, a motion to disqualify Judge Potts, 
was heard on July 21, 2010, and was denied by the Court.   
 
 The second motion is a request to return the Transit Center Property to Grand 
Sakwa, based on the allegation that the City has not complied with the terms of the 
Consent Judgment, and did not fund the Transportation Center by June 2, 2010. The 
City has sent letters to Grand Sakwa, identifying all of the ways that the Transit Center 
has been funded in the City budget, Birmingham’s budget, and with the substantial 
federal appropriation (on a reimbursement basis) and State grants.  In support of its 
argument, Grand Sakwa relies on a fax that purports to negotiate an extension of time to 
the year 2015, based on the economic situation in Michigan at that time.  Upon 
information and belief, this occurred in 2007, but the fax, from former Assistant City 
Manager Brian Murphy is not dated.  Grand Sakwa was not willing to amend the Consent 
Judgment at that time.  Grand Sakwa also cites language from the State of Michigan 
grant for $250,000 that provides limited discretion to the State, to assure that the 
conditions of the grant are satisfied.  Third, Grand Sakwa argues that the scope of the 
most recent site plan exceeds the scope of the Transportation Center that was 
contemplated by the parties as of the date of the Consent Judgment.  Grand Sakwa 
does not have any documentation to support this assertion.     
 
The hearing on this motion is scheduled for August 11, 2010.       

pallottaba
Text Box
N-07

pallottaba
Sticky Note
Marked set by pallottaba



G:\   City Council\ Agenda\Clerk Council Agenda Items\Rules of Procedure Public Comment James Savage 2010.07.12.doc 
 

 
Date July 22, 2010 

 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 

 
FROM: Mark Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
SUBJECT: July 12, 2010 City Council Meeting - Public Comment – James Savage 
  
Background: 
 
  James Savage was in attendance at the July 12, 2010 Regular City Council Meeting and 

addressed City Council under F. Public Comment. Mr. Savage has previously attended 
several Regular City Council meetings and similarly addressed City Council during Public 
Comment. Mr. Savage has requested that City Management provide him with information 
and or documentation in the course of addressing Council. The content of Mr. Savage’s 
individual requests has varied. 

  
  The Manager and Attorney being direct appointments of City Council are responsive to City 

Council requests, in the form of formal motions and Council consensus. During the time 
spent at Council meetings. 

  
  In a review of the past several meetings of Council, it was noted that there was no apparent 

directive of City Council for City Management to provide the documentation as requested 
by Mr. Savage until the Regular City Council Meeting of June 28, 2010.  

  
  On July 12, 2010 City Management provided City Council with an Agenda Report, Item M-

11, which addresses Mr. Savage’s request as spoken at the meeting of June 28, 2010. Mr. 
Savage’s request at the meeting of July 12, 2010 was expanded, by Mr. Savage, to 
incorporate additional years of documentation. City Council did not request any follow-up 
report at the conclusion of Mr. Savage’s address under Public Comment. Please be 
advised that we did send Mr. Savage the Consultant Cost Agenda item and the follow-up 
information from the July 12, 2010 meeting. 

  
  

 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-08

pallottaba
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by pallottaba



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:     Members of the Troy City Council 
 
FROM:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
    Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:   Act 164 Library – 11/02/10 General Election Ballot Question 
 
Background: 
 
 State law provides for voter submitted petitions to establish an independent library, 

under 1877 PA 164.  MCL 397.201a provides:   
  

Free public library in city; establishment; petition for tax; notice; form of ballot; 
library fund; preparing and reporting estimate of money necessary for support 
and maintenance; tax additional to tax limitation.  

 
Fifty voters of a city may present to the clerk of the city a petition 
asking that a tax be levied for the establishment of a free public library 
in that city and specifying a rate of taxation not to exceed 2 mills on the 
dollar. The tax may be of unlimited duration or the petition may specify 
the number of years for which the tax shall be levied. The clerk, in the 
next legal notice of the regular election in that city, shall give notice 
that at the election every voter may vote upon the proposition. The 
notice shall specify the rate and any duration of taxation mentioned in 
the petition. 

 
 The City Clerk received a petition on Friday, July 16, 2010 which satisfies the above 

referenced statutory provision.   
 
 The deadline for voter initiated petitions for November 2, 2010 General Election 

ballot question submittals is August 10, 2010.      
 

 As required by State Statute, the Clerk shall file ballot language with the County 
Clerk on or before August 24, 2010.  

 
 The language as indicated on the petition is as follows: 

“We, the undersigned qualified and registered electors, residents in the City of 
Troy in the County of Oakland, State of Michigan, respectively petition for: a vote 

  
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  

 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-09

pallottaba
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by pallottaba



on the question of whether a tax of .9885 mill for a period of ten (10) years 
(beginning in the year 2011) should be levied in the City of Troy for the 
establishment of a public library in the City of Troy pursuant to Section 10.a of 
the City, Village and Township Libraries Act, 1877 PA164.  

 
• The petitioner has also submitted ballot language to the City, which will be 

forwarded to the Oakland County Clerk, as required by statute.  It is as follows:   
 

CITY OF TROY 
LIBRARY MILLAGE PROPOSAL 

 
Shall the tax limitation imposed on all taxable real and tangible 
personal property within the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, be increased for said City in an amount not to 
exceed .9885 mill ($ .9885 on each $1,000 of taxable value) for 
a period of ten (10) years, 2011 to 2020 inclusive, to provide 
funds for establishing, operating, and equipping a public library 
in the City of Troy pursuant to Section 10a of 1877 PA 164 and 
for all other library purposes authorized by law; and shall the 
City levy such new additional millage for said purpose; the 
estimate of the revenue the City will collect if the millage is 
approved and levied in the 2011 calendar year is approximately 
$4,280,000?  As required by law, revenue from this millage will 
be disbursed into a dedicated library fund that is under the 
exclusive control of an independent public library board. 
 

     Yes  
     No  
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                Restructuring Committee 
                            Quarterly Report 
                                                                             July 26, 2010 

 
 
 

Submitted by: 
 

John Szerlag, City Manager 
John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Mark F. Miller, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
Peggy E. Sears, Human Resources Director 

Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Richard Carlisle, Consultant 

 
                       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
O-01

pallottaba
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by pallottaba



 

2 
 

RREESSTTRRUUCCTTUURRIINNGG  CCOOMMMMIITTTTEEEE    
QQUUAARRTTEERRLLYY  RREEPPOORRTT  

JJUULLYY  2266,,  22001100 

 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In Michigan, the challenges to local government have never been greater.  Declining property tax 
revenues, the reduction in State – shared revenue, and the lack of development activity have 
presented Michigan communities with an unprecedented challenge.   
 
The City of Troy management team has long recognized the fiscal challenges the City would face.  
Management has initiated a process of evaluating options for service delivery which is broadly 
characterized as privatization, regionalization, elimination and/or consolidation. 
 
The failure of the proposed millage placed greater importance on evaluation of service options, 
including the use of privatization, to address the City’s budget issues.  This report summarizes the 
work that has been completed to date regarding privatization and identifies additional options the City 
may wish to pursue. 
 
PRIVATIZATION 
 
Outsourcing certain government services to the private sector is not new.  Over the past two 
decades, local governments, regardless of their political makeup, have used privatization to lower 
costs and increase efficiency.  Privatization is most typically associated with contracting out public 
duties to private organizations, which may be either for-profit or non-profit.  However, privatization is 
really a term which more broadly describes a range of choices shifting some responsibilities of the 
public sector to the private sector.  As local government is being asked to do more with less, its role is 
changing from being a primary service provider to being a facilitator or broker of services. 
 
The reason most frequently cited for privatization is cost savings.  Reduction in cost ranging from five 
percent to fifty percent is a compelling factor.  However, communities that have gone the route of 
privatization have done so for other reasons as well: 
 
• Innovation – Create new and innovative solutions to service delivery 
• Access to Expertise – Contracting is a means to obtain expertise otherwise not available in-house 
• Respond to Peak Demand / Improve Speed of Delivery – Additional help can be obtained when it 

is most needed, thereby preventing service delays 
 
Although the City of Troy’s process is still evolving, the model on which the City has initially focused 
was showcased in Indianapolis, where “competing-out” allows public-sector employees to bid on 
contracts in competition with private vendors. 
 
Another term for public employee competition is called managed competition.  As with “competing-
out”, managed competition encourages City employees to compete against the private sector and 
submit a proposal to continue to provide the government services in-house.  
 
 



 

3 
 

RREESSTTRRUUCCTTUURRIINNGG  CCOOMMMMIITTTTEEEE    
QQUUAARRTTEERRLLYY  RREEPPOORRTT  

JJUULLYY  2266,,  22001100 

 
TROY PROCESS  
 
There is a growing body of knowledge in the public sector regarding privatization and City 
Management borrowed from the experience of others.  The keys to a successful process are having 
clear-cut roles in place.  The City of Troy is no stranger to contracting out services.  The Purchasing 
Department has a well-established process based on both experience and strong professional 
standards.  With the introduction of managed competition, City Management established a systematic 
process to evaluate privatization opportunities which also allowed employees to compete against the 
private proposals.  
 
Step 1 
 
The first step was identifying opportunities in consultation with department directors.  The results of 
this evaluation, discussed more fully later in this report, have been shared with the Restructuring 
(Privatization) Committee established by City Management.  This evaluation was by no means 
exhaustive and there are several areas where more specialized expertise will need to be applied.   
 
Step 2 – Process for Privatization 
 
If it is determined that a department has potential for privatization in whole or part, and the scope of 
work has been identified, the matter will be turned over to the Purchasing Director and consultant for 
specification development.  In certain circumstances, use of a consultant with expertise in a particular 
service area may be needed.  The Purchasing Director and consultant will work with the appropriate 
department and receive department head concurrence on the qualifications and request for proposals 
that are being solicited.  Should concurrence not be achieved, the City Manager’s Office will resolve 
the conflict. 
 
Step 3 – Selection of Firms to be Interviewed 
 
The evaluation committee will review proposals and select the appropriate number of qualified firms 
to be interviewed. 
 
Step 4 – The Interview Process 
 
The City Manager’s Office will select an outside subject matter expert to assist the Purchasing 
Director and consultant in conducting interviews (exception was Building Department where 
consultant was replaced by another outside expert).  Thus an interview panel of three people will 
recommend the most qualified bidder.  Department directors and other management staff of that 
department may be present during the interview, as well as ask questions. 
 
Step 5 – In-house Proposal to Compete with Private Sector Bid  
 
If the City Manager’s Office concurs with the recommendation of the Purchasing Director, consultant, 
and the other outside party, the City Manager’s Office will turn the matter over to the Human  



 

4 
 

RREESSTTRRUUCCTTUURRIINNGG  CCOOMMMMIITTTTEEEE    
QQUUAARRTTEERRLLYY  RREEPPOORRTT  

JJUULLYY  2266,,  22001100 

 
Resources Director who will work with the appropriate department director to see if the work can be 
performed as cost efficiently in-house.  The Human Resources Director can draw on anyone else she 
deems necessary to assist in this endeavor.  
 
Step 6 – The Final Outcome 
 
Once the Human Resources Director and the department director have performed their analysis, they 
will share it with the Purchasing Director and consultant.  If all agree on a course of action, they will 
submit a joint recommendation to the City Manager’s Office.  If there is disagreement, the City 
Manager’s Office will decide.  Of course, all contracts require City Council approval. 
 
RESULTS TO DATE 
 
For the most part, early emphasis has been placed on “on-demand” services (i.e. the Planning, 
Building and Engineering Departments).  Because such services are more sensitive to economic 
activity, the potential savings is more significant.  While evaluation of golf course management had 
been initiated prior to establishment of the current process, the Troy process was followed with the 
exception of the interview panel.  Here the raters were all employees. 
 
The following summarizes current results: 
 
Planning Department 
 
At the outset of this evaluation, the Planning Department had already downsized from five full-time 
staff to two.  Planning was previously outsourcing some work to private consultants.  Now most 
development review activity (which is unpredictable) is outsourced to a consultant using escrow 
accounts to pay for the services.  Consulting services are due to be re-evaluated at the end of this 
year. 
 
We estimate that by reducing the Planning Department workforce and installing a part-time 
consultant, the City will save over $250,000 per annum.  
 
Planning has taken on additional responsibilities when Code Enforcement was shifted to the 
department.  The Zucker Report had recommended that there would be better zoning ordinance 
interpretation and administration by shifting that function to the Planning Department. The Zoning and 
Compliance Specialist assists the Director with the zoning administration and appeals to the Zoning 
Board of Appeals (ZBA).  Additional responsibility has been assumed with building official duties 
combined with code enforcement activities, creating some of the efficiencies recommended by the 
Zucker Report. 
 
Code Enforcement 
 
Code Enforcement consists of zoning and nuisance code enforcement and rental housing inspection.  
The rental housing inspection program is already handled by two part-time staff.   



 

5 
 

RREESSTTRRUUCCTTUURRIINNGG  CCOOMMMMIITTTTEEEE    
QQUUAARRTTEERRLLYY  RREEPPOORRTT  

JJUULLYY  2266,,  22001100 

 
Therefore, it was determined there was little or no benefit or cost savings to outsourcing this function 
to a private contractor. 
 
A Statement of Qualifications (SOQ) was released for other code enforcement functions, and only 
one proposal was received which met the pass/fail criteria.  The Planning Department submitted a 
proposal to retain code enforcement, and it was determined that savings would be minimal by 
outsourcing code enforcement to a private contractor.  Further, management weighed the benefit of 
maintaining control over this function, since enforcement is not an on-demand service; rather, it is a 
blight mitigation tool. 
  
Building Department  
 
On June 7, 2010, the City Council approved hiring SAFEBuilt, Inc. to perform all building inspection 
and plan review functions.  The Building Department’s proposal was theoretical rather than actual, as 
the Building Department could not compete from a standpoint of cost when compared to the variable 
model presented by SAFEbuilt.  Further, the Building Department proposal did not address service 
levels and needed improvements in the use of technology. 
 
There is not a more clear example to privatize than having an on-demand service be predicated on 
user fees with a portion thereof being reverted to the General Fund as a revenue.   
 
Retaining SAFEbuilt will save the City approximately $1.1 million in the first year, when compared to 
the fiscal year 2009/10 Building Inspection operating budget. 
 
Engineering Department 
 
The Engineering Department has been a model example of a hybrid department, maintaining a core 
staff and outsourcing a variety of engineering, design, plan review, and inspection activities to private 
consultants.  Nearly 50 percent of cost associated with general operating and capital projects is 
outsourced to consultants.  Engineering currently has three general engineering services contracts 
and two municipal testing services contracts with private firms, and has a great deal of experience in 
negotiating both scope of work and fees in order to achieve cost effective service to the City. 
 
Engineering has reduced the number of personnel from 23 full-time and seven part-time in fiscal year 
fiscal year 2004/05 to 13 full-time and three part-time in fiscal year 2010/11.  Much of Engineering’s 
work is driven by the City’s Capital program.  The office also supports both in-house and outsourced 
design with surveying.  While this function has been downsized, the Department has not eliminated it.  
Thus, some additional survey functions may be outsourced, even to firms not currently under a 
general services agreement.   
 
Engineering also enforces soil erosion and sedimentation permits, plan review and inspection.  While 
this function may be outsourced to Oakland County, the result will be loss of revenues, greater 
inconvenience to permittees, and a loss of local control over enforcement.   
 



 

6 
 

RREESSTTRRUUCCTTUURRIINNGG  CCOOMMMMIITTTTEEEE    
QQUUAARRTTEERRLLYY  RREEPPOORRTT  

JJUULLYY  2266,,  22001100 

 
To better support the function, Engineering is working on a fee structure that covers the actual cost 
and will be in line with other communities. 
 
The Department and City rely on up-to-date GIS, including data entry in the Engineering Department.  
It will be counterproductive to put data entry on hold for any significant period of time.  The cost of 
entering data after a delay will be greater than the benefit received.   
 
However, both the Department and City need to explore better cost recovery options.  Currently, the 
City does not charge outside users of the City’s GIS data. 
 
The final Department function relates to ROW acquisition.  The function has been shared between a 
City staff member and a consulting firm.  However, since the duration of the work is capital project 
related and is estimated at one and half to two years, it was determined to be more cost effective to 
keep the position in-house, and minimized the use of a consultant. 
 
In summary, the Engineering Department has achieved the optimum balance between the use of in-
house staff and consultants.  This is primarily attributable to our rolling six-year $100 million Capital 
improvements programming. 
 
Golf Course Management 
 
On June 7, 2010 the City Council approved the hiring of Billy Casper Golf to manage the two City-
owned courses.  Proposals were received from five firms, and three were selected for an interview.  
The recommendation made by City management was to retain Billy Casper Golf with a management 
contract.  Golf course staff, which includes AFSCME bargaining unit personnel, were given an 
opportunity to compete, and proposed an aggressive plan to reduce expenditures and hire a 
marketing consultant.  However, staff could not compete on boosting revenues, critical to the success 
of the courses.  Further, staff was unable to provide the same assurances for non-performance as 
Billy Casper Golf, in other words, providing the City with a guaranteed revenue stream. 
 
Under the AFSCME collective bargaining agreement, City management has the right to subcontract 
work normally performed by bargaining unit personnel providing three conditions are met: 
 
1) The requisite manpower or time, skills, tools, or equipment are not available; or 
2) The work cannot be as economically performed by the bargaining unit personnel. 
3) Management will advise the Union of those construction projects involving subcontracting. 
 
Of these, the second requirement is paramount.  The analysis demonstrates that the work cannot be 
as economically performed by AFSCME personnel as it can by Billy Casper Golf. 
 
City Assessor’s Office 
 
The City Assessor’s Office is well qualified and knowledgeable in the complexities of property in Troy.  
Staff has been cross-trained and is flexible in the assignment of duties. 



 

7 
 

RREESSTTRRUUCCTTUURRIINNGG  CCOOMMMMIITTTTEEEE    
QQUUAARRTTEERRLLYY  RREEPPOORRTT  

JJUULLYY  2266,,  22001100 

 
 
The City Assessor’s Office is sensitive to economic conditions, although not to the extent of other “on-
demand” services.  There has been some discussion about outsourcing to Oakland County.  
However, to respond to the economic downturn the department has eliminated two positions.  There 
are other alternatives to consider, such as outsourcing to a private contractor(s) under the contractual 
control of the City Assessor.  Contractual arrangements under the supervision of the City Assessor 
would ensure maintenance of their high standards. The City Assessor’s Office will continue to identify 
periods when contracting would benefit a staff of reduced size. 
 
EVALUATION OF OTHER DEPARTMENTS 
 
As part of Step 1, initial observations were made of the other departments.  Since the initial 
evaluation was performed in December, the millage failure and implementation of Option 1 has 
affected many of the initial observations.   
 
For example, outsourcing the management of the Library is a moot point.  Other options such as 
transitioning the Museum and Historic Village over to a private non-profit are currently being 
discussed.  Therefore, this report will not discuss options for functions which are being eliminated.   
 
Department of Public Works  
 
The DPW manages and maintains the City’s water and sewer, storm drains and streets, as well as 
the equipment and fleet needed to perform these tasks.  DPW has had significant staff reductions, 
and already contracts out quite a bit of its work.  They also perform fleet maintenance for other 
communities and school districts. 
 
Not all City maintenance functions are housed within DPW.  Some maintenance activities are 
performed by Building Operations and Parks and Recreation.  Therefore, there is some redundancy 
that is currently being addressed.  In conjunction with management, the three departments have been 
evaluating overlapping responsibilities.  Consolidation and maintenance under a single department 
(DPW) will increase opportunities for outsourcing.  
 
Community Affairs 
 
Most of the activities of this Department are so directly related to other internal City functions that it 
would be difficult to outsource.  The Community Affairs Director’s position has been split half-time 
between the Police Department and the City Manager’s Office.   
 
This decision has the advantage of relieving a uniformed officer of some community relations.  That 
said, we are considering utilizing the International City Management Association (ICMA) to conduct 
an independent analysis of the City Manager’s Office. 
 
 
 



 

8 
 

RREESSTTRRUUCCTTUURRIINNGG  CCOOMMMMIITTTTEEEE    
QQUUAARRTTEERRLLYY  RREEPPOORRTT  

JJUULLYY  2266,,  22001100 

 
 
City Clerk’s Office 
 
Most of the City Clerk’s Office functions are statutory, i.e., elections, record-keeping, voter 
registration, Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) requests, etc.  Election cycles have a major impact 
on staffing in the City Clerk’s Office.  As other departments downsize, record-keeping may again 
need to be centralized, thereby impacting the City Clerk’s Office.  The department also performs a 
number of non-statutory service functions that may either be shifted or eliminated.   
 
However, the elimination of some functions such as dog licenses, passports, and vitals will leave a 
permanent negative effect on revenues.  One area being explored for outsourcing is minute-taking for 
all boards and commissions. 
 
Finance 
 
Finance is an internal service department.  Some functions such as water billing and benefit 
administration have already been consolidated with other internal departments.  Implementation of 
the integrated New World software system has allowed for reduction and consolidation of staff from 
10 ½ full-time employees in fiscal 2007/08 to seven full-time employees in fiscal year 2010/11.  
Clerical staff is shared among all finance functions.  Outsourcing of other functions has occurred.  For 
example, water and tax bill printing and mailing are done by a contractor.  The Finance Department 
continues to explore outsourcing opportunities.  The outsourcing of payroll may be revisited if there 
are further staff reductions. 
 
Fire Department 
 
The Fire Department is unique for a city the size of Troy.  Using volunteer firefighters to supplement 
full-time staff saves the City at least $10 million per year.  A key to the Fire Department’s success is 
prevention, which comes through plan review, pre-fire surveys, and inspections.  While some of this 
can be outsourced, there seems little reason to do so, especially since personnel in fire prevention 
also respond to fires. 
 
Library/ Museum 
 
While this function was evaluated, results of the preliminary observations are no longer relevant due 
to failing of the millage. 
 
Police Department 
 
Although the City’s largest department, the Police Department has downsized from 194 to 179 
positions largely through attrition.  A number of vacant positions are not filled.  The Police Department 
also uses civilians to perform certain functions (i.e. communications, lock-up), freeing up uniformed 
officers for other duties.  The Police Department has been encouraged to explore other positions that 
can be filled by civilians and/or consolidate certain functions.   



 

9 
 

RREESSTTRRUUCCTTUURRIINNGG  CCOOMMMMIITTTTEEEE    
QQUUAARRTTEERRLLYY  RREEPPOORRTT  

JJUULLYY  2266,,  22001100 

 
The replacement of some of the functions of the community relations officer with a half-time position 
shared with the City Manager’s Office is an example. 
 
There is little in the Police Department that can be outsourced, although animal control is a non-
required service that can be largely eliminated.  Like the City Manager’s Office, we are considering a 
proposal from ICMA to find the most effective way to manage Police operations, with the assistance 
of the Plante-Moran consulting firm.   
 
The Police Department is working to consolidate dispatch and jail services with the Cities of Madison 
Heights and Royal Oak. 
 
Human Resources 
 
The Human Resources Department manages most functions related to employment and labor 
relations.  Labor counsel is contracted to a private firm.  The responsibilities of Human Resources will 
increase with the elimination of City staff.  The management of benefits is assigned to Risk 
Management.  Certain tasks such as recruitment are already outsourced and could be expanded.  As 
retirements take place, the recruitment of qualified individuals to replace the years of lost experience 
will be critical.  Performance evaluations of remaining staff will increase in importance.  Training 
activities will be largely confined to that which is legally required. 
 
Purchasing Department 
 
The Purchasing Department is responsible for all aspects of procurement of goods and services, 
except if construction-related.  Purchasing also provides administrative oversight of contracts once 
awards have been made. 
 
The significant role that Purchasing plays has never been more evident than recently.  Expanded 
restructuring, in general and managed competition, more specifically, will place increased 
responsibility on the Purchasing Department.  Therefore, it makes little sense to privatize a 
department that plays such a major role in restructuring.  
 
City Manager’s Office 
 
As the City organization continues to downsize, a number of functions will be shifted to the City 
Manager’s Office.  Community Affairs has been reduced in size and is a position shared between 
Police and the City Manager’s Office.  Economic Development has also been shifted to the City 
Manager’s Office.   Again, we are going to have an independent third party review of this department. 
 
Parks and Recreation 
 
Parks and Recreation has extensive responsibilities which include managing and maintaining the 
City’s park system, operating the Community Center, operating the Nature Center, programming and 
managing over two dozen day camps, and conducting athletic, adaptive and enrichment programs.   



 

10 
 

RREESSTTRRUUCCTTUURRIINNGG  CCOOMMMMIITTTTEEEE    
QQUUAARRTTEERRLLYY  RREEPPOORRTT  

JJUULLYY  2266,,  22001100 

 
The Department is also responsible for the seniors program, runs a licensed preschool program, and 
operates four municipal cemeteries. 
 
In addition to maintaining public parks, the Department has also been charged with responsibilities 
not related to the parks and recreation mission, such as maintaining all City-owned property, 
enforcing corner clearance, and conducting landscape reviews and inspections.   
 
Parks and Recreation also manages the forestry function of the City, which includes planting and 
maintaining street trees.  However, foresting work has been outsourced to a private contractor. 
 
In difficult economic times, it is likely that residents rely even more upon Parks and Recreation to 
provide leisure activity that is affordable.  With less disposable income, families rely more heavily on 
recreation closer to home. 
 
Emphasis has been placed on Parks and Recreation focusing on its primary mission.   
 
• Certain functions such as the Nature Center will be eliminated.   
• Management of the golf courses has been privatized to Billy Casper Golf.   
• Evaluation is underway to transfer all park, cemetery, public property maintenance, and forestry 
 to DPW.   
• Landscape review and inspections has been transferred to the Planning Department, who will 
 outsource most of the function. 
• The Community Center has the potential of producing excess revenues over expenses.  A 
 number of changes are being explored, including the sales of liquor for special events. 
 
City Attorney’s Office 
 
The City Attorney will work directly with the City Council in determining the most cost-effective 
manner to deliver municipal legal services. 
 
FINAL OBSERVATIONS 
 
Troy has enjoyed a reputation as a leader in municipal services and infrastructure within the region.  
How the City maintains that position will be solely dependent on the innovation and courage applied 
to this problem. 
 
As the City grapples with a bleak economic outlook and resulting loss of tax revenues, various forms 
of alternative service delivery and/or the elimination of services will continuously be on the table for 
discussion.  Privatization of certain services is among the more immediate options available to the 
City. 
 
Privatization will not be appropriate for all City services.  Poorly executed privatization will do a 
disservice to taxpayers.  However, as the City digs deeper into privatization opportunities, the benefits 
can include a high degree of transparency, accountability, and efficiency in the delivery of services. 


	20100726 Agenda.pdf
	AGENDA: July 26, 2010
	COVER MEMO
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET
	ROLL CALL
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 Presentations:
	Legislative update received from State Representative Marty Knollenberg – 41st District
	Presentation from Members of the Bharatiya Temple to Promote their Temple’s Festival – The Anand Bazaar, a Fun Filled Family Event to be held on Sunday, August 1 from 11 AM - 7 PM


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 No Public Hearings

	PUBLIC COMMENT:
	RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT
	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1 No Postponed Items

	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled
	Mayoral Appointments: None Scheduled
	City Council Appointments: None Scheduled

	I-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees:
	Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled
	City Council Nominations: None Scheduled

	I-3 Request for Closed Session
	I-4 Preliminary Site Plan Review – File Number SP 962 – InPro Insurance Group – Section 24

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted
	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Audio & Video Upgrades
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend Funds for Council Member Travel Expenses – Michigan Municipal League’s 112th Annual Convention – Dearborn, MI
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder Contract 10-1 Section 35 – Water Main Replacement

	J-5 Private Agreement for Our Credit Union
	J-6 Chapter 106 – Traffic; “Driving While Distracted” Ordinance – “Drag Races Prohibited; “Drag Racing” Defined’ Violation Punishable as Misdemeanor”
	J-7 Bid Waiver – Police Gun Range Maintenance
	J-8 Private Agreement for Kilmer PUD 10

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted
	J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at some future point in time): None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	L-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS
	M-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS
	N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Troy Historic Commission – Final – March 23, 2010
	Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting/Draft – June 22, 2010
	Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting/Final – June 22, 2010

	N-2 Department Reports:
	Final Reporting – BidNet on-Line Auction Services – June 2010

	N-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Appreciation from Jerome Katz to John Szerlag Commending Pam Valentik for her Hard Work and Assistance at the MEGA Meeting

	N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted
	Oakland County Board of Commissioners – Miscellaneous Resolution #10143 – Information Technology – Policy on Electronic Equipment Hard Drives to Protect Against Identity Theft

	N-5  Proof of TIPS/TAMS Server Training
	N-6  July 12, 2010 City Council Meeting – Public Comment – Maryann Bernardi
	N-7  Motion Filed by Grand Sakwa Regarding Transit Center Property
	N-8  July 12, 2010 City Council Meeting – Public Comment – James Savage
	N-9  Act 164 Library – 11/02/10 General Election Ballot Question

	STUDY ITEMS
	O-1  Restructuring Committee Quarterly Report

	CLOSED SESSION:
	P-1 Closed Session – Troy v William H. Price and Troy v BG's LLC

	ADJOURNMENT




